























RTA Board of Trustees
September 26, 2023

Page 2

2023-73 - Initial appointments of the seven members to the Civilian
Oversight Committee

2023-74 - Delegating to the General Manager, Chief Executive Officer
the authority to authorize change orders up to $6,500,000.00 under
Contract No. 2021-125 - the purchase of replacement rail cars

2023-75 — Authorizing Contract No. 2023-98 with Cook Paving &
Construction Co., Inc. for Project 19.48 — Triskett Maintenance Facility
Roadway Improvements in an amount not to exceed $237,680.00 (RTA
Development Fund, Engineering & Project Development Department
budget)

2023-76 — Authorizing Contract No. 2023-109 with Apex Construction &
Management Co., Inc. for Project No. 19.76 — Triskett Garage Overhead
Door Replacement in an amount not to exceed $134,750.00 (RTA Capital
Fund, Engineering & Project Development Department budget)

2023-77 — Authorizing Contract No. 2023-130 with Holland LP to provide
Track Geometry Testing Services in an amount not to exceed
$420,500.00 for a period of five (5) years (General Fund, Power & Way
Department budget)

2023-78 — Removing Chapter 462 Private Sector Participation from the
Codified Rules and Regulations of the Greater Cleveland Regional
Transit Authority

2023-79 — Removing Section 648.07 Safety Policy and amending
Chapter 1098 Commitment on Environmental Policy of the Codified Rules
and Regulations of the Greater Cleveland Regional Transit Authority and
amending Personnel Policy 600.07 Safety Policy

2023-80 — Authorizing the Greater Cleveland Regional Transit Authority
to enter into a five-year license agreement with Lamar Advertising of
Youngstown, Inc., dba Lamar Advertising of Cleveland, OH for Outdoor
Advertising Structures at five (5) locations on GCRTA property

15. Secretary-Treasurer's Report:

A

mo o

General Fund Revenue — status as of August 31, 2023 versus 2022
actuals

General Fund Revenue - status as of August 31, 2023 versus the 2023
budget

Sales & Use Tax Receipts Report budgeted during 2023, actual receipts
through September 2023

Inventory of Treasury Investments as of August 31, 2023

Debt Service Schedule and Status of Bond Retirement Fund (cash basis)
as of August 31, 2023






Minutes
RTA Board of Trustees Meeting
9:57 a.m. August 29, 2023
Board Members: Lucas (Chair), Moss (Vice Chair), Joyce, Koomar, Sleasman, Weiss, Welch

Not present: Biasiotta, Mersmann

Staff/Other: Bailey, Birdsong Terry, Burney, Caver, Clark, Coffey, Dangelo, Davidson, Fields, Fleig,
Freilich, Garofoli, Gautam, Hlavacs, Hudson, Jones, Lincoln, Miller, Mothes, Rubin, Schipper, Sulik, Talley,
Walker Minor, Wiehe

Public: Buford, Gibbons, Jackson, Pickney-Butts, Rodriquez
The meeting was called to order at 9:57 a.m. There were seven (7) Board members present.

It was advised that notice of this meeting had been posted more than twenty-four hours in advance of the
meeting, that the usual notification had been given the news media and other interested persons, and that
all requirements of the Ohio Revised Code and Rules and Bylaws of this Board regarding notice of
meeting had been complied with.

Minutes

President Lucas stated that the minutes from the July 25, 2023 Board Meeting had been previously
distributed and reviewed, and asked whether there were any additions and/or corrections. There were no
corrections. It was moved and seconded. The minutes were approved.

Public Comments — Agenda ltems

1. Rev. Pinkney-Butts — she supports reso 2023-63. She thanked RTA for being environmentally
safe. She asks that RTA be aware of human trafficking. She requested more information on resos
2023-68, 2023-68, 2023-69 and 2023-70.

2. Rico Dancy (caller) — he is concerned about operators not letting down the lift for people with
walkers. Ms. Terry said they have a campaign to frain the operators on using the lifts.

3. Airric Stewart (caller) — he asks that the 15A be reinstated. This would reduce wait times, increase
ridership and give access to retail, schools, colleges and libraries, The 48A would also be
improved. Every number counts in the Customer Experience survey Net Promotor scores. An
explanation of the scores would also be helpful. Numbers should be provided as opposed to
percentages. Ms. Terry said they will drill down on reasons provided by the public and numbers
are reviewed at the tactical level.

Committee Reports

There were no reports.

Community Advisory Committee (CAC)

There was no report.

Ad Hoc Committee Reports

There were no reports.



RTA Board of Trustees
August 28, 2023

Page 2 of 5

Introduction of New Employees/Promotions

There were 63 new hires for various positions. Eight employees were promoted.

Introduction of Resolutions:

A.

2023-63 — Authorizing an increase to Contract No. 2022-001 with the John F. Gallagher
Plumbing Company for Project 19.27 — Hayden Garage HVAC Replacement in the amount
of $115,567.00 for a total contract amount of $602,285.18 and reinstating the General
Manager, Chief Executive Officer's change order signing authority in its entirety (RTA
Development Fund, Engineering & Project Development Department budget), the adoption
of which was moved by Ms. Moss, seconded by Mayor Koomar and approved by
unanimous vote.

Ms. Moss asked for clarification on the change order. She is concerned that the contractor
underbid but is still getting the money under a change order. Mr. Schipper said during the
bidding process, to meet the new standards, the proposed units were bigger than the
platforms the old units sat on. To safely and properly maintain the units, staff needed to
add some platform around the units. Ms. Terry added that reducing change orders is one
of their tactical goals.

2023-64 — Authorizing Contract No. 2023-106 with Valley Chevy Truck Inc. for the
purchase and delivery of eight (8) 2024 Chevy full size pickup trucks, equipment and
accessories, as specified, through the State of Ohio, Department of Administrative
Services, Cooperative Purchasing Program, for a total price not to exceed $589,121.00
(RTA Capital Fund, Fleet Management Department budget), the adoption of which was
moved by Mayor Weiss, seconded by Mr. Joyce and approved by unanimous vote.

2023-65 — Authorizing Contract No. 2023-114 with the Ohio Department of Administrative
Services, Office of Information Technology, Multi-Agency Radio Communication System
("MARCS") to provide 700/800mhz wireless digital radio network subscription services in
an amount not to exceed $1,200,000.00 for a period of three years (General Fund,
Intelligent Transportation Systems Department budget), the adoption of which was moved
by Mayor Weiss, seconded by Ms. Welch and approved by unanimous vote.

2023-66 — Authorizing Contract No. 2023-123 with Oracle America, Inc. to provide Oracle
Infrastructure as a Service Subscription Services, for a period of one year, in an amount
not to exceed $225,000.00 (General Fund, Management Information Services Department
budget), the adoption of which was moved by Ms. Moss, seconded by

Mr. Sleasman and approved by unanimous vote.

Ms. Dangelo said this is the annual renewal subscription service to allow us to have
licensing of the cloud version of Oracle. Mr. Gautam added this is a key software for the
Authority's financial accounting management system.

2023-67 — Authorizing the purchase of casualty insurance from various insurance
underwriters through USI Insurance Services, LLC and Price Forbes & Partners Limited, or
their successors, for a period of 12 months, in a total amount not to exceed $2,163,038.00
(Insurance and General Funds, Risk Management Department budget), the adoption of
which was moved by Mayor Koomar, seconded by Mayor Weiss and approved by
unanimous vote.

2023-68 — Amending Chapter 216 Public Records and removing Chapter 650 Records
Retention of the Codified Rules and Regulations of the Greater Cleveland Regional Transit



RTA Board of Trustees
August 29, 2023
Page 3 of 5

Authority and amending Personnel Policy 700 Records Retention and Release, the
adoption of which was moved by Mr. Joyce, seconded by Mayor Weiss and approved by
unanimous vote.

Ms. Hlavacs, Senior Counsel for Contracts, Real Estate and Administrative Law is acting
for Janet Burney, Deputy General Manager of Legal Affairs and General Counsel. She
added that the Code Book is being cleaned up. This section was duplicative. It will remain
in the personnel policies. It is also being brought up to current standards and laws. Ms.
Moss asked if the records retention policy is in compliance with state law. Ms. Hlavacs
said we are in compliance. These updates are more procedural,

G. 2023-69 — Authorizing the filing of grant applications with the State of Ohio for State Fiscal
Year 2025 financial assistance under all State of Ohio programs, the adoption of which was
moved by Ms. Welch, seconded by Mayor Weiss and approved by unanimous vote.

H. 2023-70 - Designation of depositories for active and interim public monies during the five-
year period commencing January 1, 2024 through December 31, 2028, the adoption which
was moved by Mayor Weiss, seconded by Mayor Koomar. Ms. Moss asked for a roll call.
There were six (6) ayes and one abstention from Ms. Moss. It passed.

The Ohio Revised Code (ORC) requires the Board approve the financial institutions with
which RTA retains public monies. They have to comply with collateral requirements. The
resolution is for a five-year period.

I.  2023-71 — Estimation of inactive deposits of the Greater Cleveland Regional Transit
Authority to be awarded for the period from January 1, 2024 through December 31, 2028,
the adoption of which was moved by Mayor Koomar, seconded by Ms. Welch and
approved by unanimous vote.

Secretary-Treasurer's Report

Rajan D. Gautam, Deputy General Manager of Finance and Secretary-Treasurer gave the report. The
annual inflation rate after hitting a high of 9.1% in Jan. 2020, has been steadily declining. At the end of
July 2023, inflation rose to 3.2% from 3% in June. The Federal Reserve raised interest rates in July to
5.5%. Interest rates are now at the highest level in 22 years. The next FOMC meeting is Sept.19-20.
There is enough widespread belief that there may be future increases in interest rates. The inflation target
rate remains at 2% and we are at 3.2%. July MSA unemployment data will be released on August 30.
This is the June data. The U.S. unemployment rate was 3.5% in July. The Ohio unemployment rate was
3.3% in July 2023 compared to 3.2% in June. All MSA unemployment rates increased from June 2023.
As of June 2023, Cleveland was 4.4% up from 3.8%. Toledo at 3.9% up from 3.8%. Dayton at 3.8% up
from 3.4%. Cincinnati at 3.5% up from 3.1%. Columbus at 3.3% up from 3%.

July passenger fares was 0.6% compared to July 2022. Itis 1.4% below budget. Compared to July 2023
cash fares decreased by 5.4%. Pass ticket sales increased by 4.9%. U-Pass and student fare cards
decreased by 45.7%. YTD the U-Pass revenue is less than 2% off from 2022 |evels. Mobile ticketing
increased by 24.2%. YTD passenger fare revenue is 6.4% above 2022 levels of $14.88 million and $6.38
million or 28.7% below 2019 levels of $22.21 million. August 2023 sales tax which is based on May 2023
economic activity was 1.2% higher than August 2022 levels. This reverses the sales tax decline over the
last two months. Thirteen of the 23 categories were positive compared to August 2022. Online sales were
3.5% higher. Regular and statewide sales were 0.4% higher. Motor vehicles and watercraft were 5.8%
lower. This is the fourth consecutive month that motor vehicles and watercraft were lower compared to
2022 levels. This is due to a result of the aggressive rate increases and the access to easy money. The
low or no interest car loans are not that easily available, which is slowing down activity.



RTA Board of Trustees
August 29, 2023
Page 4 of 5

Every two or three years, the rating agencies that rate our bonds payable review any material changes for
our business to keep the investors protected. Moody's affirmed its Aa1 rating, which is the second highest
rating. Credit strengths cited by Moody's included our methodology to protect our investors, by taking out
the debt service prior to us getting the sales tax receipts. We have a strong coverage of the maximum
annual debt service (MADS) by pledged revenue. In 2018, we were at 12.3x. Now we are 27 .4x for 2023.
In 2021 we were at 14.8x compared to 2022 which goes back to the debt defeasance we completed in
2021.

Mr. Joyce asked if we got any ripple effect from the U.S. debt being downgraded from AAA to AA by Fitch.
Mr. Gautam said most of the ratings are looking at the business models behind that particular entity so
there is no ripple effect on us. Ourinvestors are extremely protected because of the strong sales tax
backing. The debt service is secure, We have no plans of issuing any new debt. Mayor Weiss asked if
the two month decline of the sales tax was due to a timing issue. Mr. Gautam said it's hard to determine
the reason. Some of the FOMC rate increases could have caused it.

General Manager/CEQ Report

India L. Birdsong Terry, General Manager, CEQ gave the report. The reopening of the Waterfront Line
(WFL) is September 8 at the Flats East Bank Station. The time was changed to 1:30 p.m. The WFL will
run during Browns regular season games. RTA participated in a Cross Systems Crisis Training at Tri-C to
look at school safety. Participants included Mayor Justin M. Bibb, the new CMSD CEO and other city
officials. Ms. Terry was recognized by Blacks in Management on June 29 at CWRU. Nine other leaders
were recognized. President Lucas and staff participated in the 53™ Annual Puerto Rican Parade, August
6. President Lucas said he was glad to be a part of the event.

RTA hosted the 2023 Midwest Transit Leadership Exchange Conference on August 10-11. They
participated in tours and educational sessions. Representatives from COTA in Columbus and Pittsburgh
Regional Transit among other systems participated. RTA hosted the Touch A Truck event on August 13
on Public Square. The community was able to explore several vehicles during the event. RTA will be
awarded the Best in Class for Workforce Diversity today by the Greater Cleveland Partnership (GCP).
Several RTA staff members made up the project team. RTA held an employee engagement event at the
Rail District with the Rail Rodeo, August 26. This is a series of skills competitions between rail staff.
President Lucas was also in attendance. Staff and their families were able to attend. RTA's Let's Go
Together marketing campaign has increased our social media footprint and shows RTA impact in the
community. Ms. Terry served on the APTA Nominating Committee for the new slate of officers.

Public Comments — public transit related items

1. Rev. Pinkney-Butts — There needs to be more legislation on heterosexual Christian, and multi-
racial rights and to address the homeless, underserved and displaced veterans. She
congratulated the new hires and thanked RTA for employing people as opposed to incarceration.

2. April Buford —~ She is a paratransit rider. She thanked RTA for the service. She has issues with
the scheduling system. Drop off times are not necessarily taken in order, therefore making the
customer late. Dr. Caver explained that the scheduling system uses an algorithm that looks at the
location of the vehicle and the aggregate drop off for all customers. The system looks to maximize
all the trips in the system so drop offs may not be in order.

3. Hayes Roman — He has issues with buses idling. He asks that the carriage/carts/stroller policy be
reviewed. Paratransit doesn't allow him to ride with his cart without breaking it down. He
requested bathrooms at stations. Dr. Caver explained that carts/strollers must be closed prior to
boarding the vehicle for safety reasons. These items can become a projectile if the bus must stop
suddenly.






RESOLUTION NO. 2023-72

EXPRESSING APPRECIATION TO KAREN GABRIEL MOSS FOR HER
SERVICE AS A MEMBER OF THE BOARD OF TRUSTEES OF THE GREATER
CLEVELAND REGIONAL TRANSIT AUTHORITY AND EXTENDING BEST
WISHES FOR MANY YEARS TO COME

WHEREAS, Karen Gabriel Moss has served as a member of the Board of Trustees of
the Greater Cleveland Regional Transit Authority ("GCRTA") for twelve (12) years, having been
appointed by former Cuyahoga County Executive Edward FitzGerald in March 2011; and

WHEREAS, Karen Gabriel Moss has been a faithful and dedicated Board Trustee during
her tenure, serving on several committees, including the Ad Hoc CEQ/GM Search Committee,
Ad Hoc Bylaws Review Committee, Ad Hoc Compensation Committee, Chair of the Audit,
Safety Compliance & Real Estate Committee and as the Vice President of the Board since
2021; and

WHEREAS, Karen Gabriel Moss provided great insight to the GCRTA Board of Trustees
by sharing her expertise as an attorney; and

WHEREAS, during her tenure as a member of the GCRTA Board of Trustees, Karen
Gabriel Moss was a strong advocate for public transit and demonstrated her unwavering
commitment to local, regional and state collaboration in order to achieve the best possible
outcomes for all; and

WHEREAS, Karen Gabriel Moss has performed with great diligence, insight and passion
in serving the citizens of Cuyahoga County.

NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED by the Board of Trustees of the Greater
Cleveland Regional Transit Authority, Cuyahoga County, Ohio:

Section 1. That the Board of Trustees hereby extends its sincere appreciation to
Karen Gabriel Moss for her dedicated service to GCRTA and her community.

Section 2. That the members of the Board of Trustees expresses its gratitude to
Karen Gabriel Moss for her diligence in the performance of her responsibilities to the residents

of Cuyahoga County.

Section 3. That the Board of Trustees offers its best wishes to Karen Gabriel Mass on
her future endeavors.

Section 4. That this resolution shall become effective immediately upon its adoption.

Adopted: September 26, 2023

President

Attest:

Secretary-Treasurer






RESOLUTION NO. 2023-73

INITIAL APPOINTMENTS OF THE SEVEN MEMBERS TO THE CIVILIAN
OVERSIGHT COMMITTEE

WHEREAS, under Atrticle VI, Section 4 of the Bylaws of the Greater Cleveland Regional
Transit Authority (“Authority”), the Board of Trustees is authorized to establish special advisory
committees; and

WHEREAS, in its efforts to provide greater transparency, to seek community input, and
to improve relationships between the community and the Authority in the modern policing
environment, on August 23, 2022, the Board of Trustees adopted Resolution 2022-82, creating
an independent Civilian Oversight Committee ("COC"); and

WHEREAS, the COC's purpose is to review public complaints filed against the
Authority’s Transit Police Department employees; and

WHEREAS, the COC will receive, investigate, and make recommendations for the
resolution of public complaints regarding alleged misconduct by Transit Police employees; and

WHEREAS, under Section 222.05(b)(1) of the Codified Rules and Regulations of the
Authority, the Board of Trustees is required to appoint seven (7) members to serve on the COC;
and

WHEREAS, under Section 222.05(b)(2)(E) of the Codified Rules and Regulations of the
Authority, at least one member of the COC shall be a retired police officer with Ohio Peace
Officer Training Academy experience; and

WHEREAS, the Board of Trustees created an Ad Hoc Selection Committee for
interviewing applicants to the COC and recommending seven (7) candidates for appointment;
and

WHEREAS, under Section 222.05(b)(3)(C) of the Codified Rules and Regulations of the
Authority, to ensure that the COC member terms will be staggered, two COC members’ initial
appointments shall be for one (1) year, two COC members' initial appointments shall be for two
(2) years, and three COC members' initial appointments shall be for the full three (3) years: and

WHEREAS, Members of the COC will receive unlimited transit privileges during their
service and will be compensated in the amount of one thousand, eight hundred dollars
($1,800.00) per year, paid at a rate of one hundred fifty dollars ($150.00) per month; and

WHEREAS, the Ad Hoc Selection Committee interviewed applicants for the COC and
recommended appointment of the following seven (7) candidates to the Board of Trustees:

Auvil, Elise: Elise has served as an assistant public defender in both Philadelphia and
Cleveland and served as an associate counsel for GCRTA from 1997 to 2003. Elise was
also the former Chief of Staff for Mayor Justin Bibb. Elise is currently the Human
Resources Consultant for EHA Solutions, Ltd. and has held that role for 8 years.

Clary, Timothy: Timothy has experience working as an attorney in a private firm handling
litigation as well as serving as an assistant prosecuting attorney for Cuyahoga County.
Presently, Timothy is working as an assistant public defender in the Cuyahoga County
Public Defender's Office.



Resolution No. 2023-73

Page 2

Gordon, Jakolya: Jakolya has been a member of various community organizations
including the Cuyahoga County Child Fatality Review Committee, Alliance for HOPE
International, and the Alcohol, Drug, Addiction, & Mental Health Services Board. Jakolya
currently works as a program specialist for the Cuyahoga County Public Safety & Justice
Services and has held that role for 13 years.

Morris, David: David has 20+ years of HR experience, with job duties and responsibilities
including handling investigations of employee misconduct and citizen complaints. David
presently works as the Human Resources Manager for the City of Bedford Heights.

Sims, Steven: Steven has engaged in public service throughout Cuyahoga County and
Cleveland in various roles, including at GCRTA as the Director of the Office of Business
Development. Steven currently serves as the President/CEQ of the Greater Cleveland
Community Credit Union, a financial institution focused on serving the unbanked and
underserved communities of Cuyahoga County.

Taylor, George (OPOTA trained, retired police officer). George is a retired uniformed
police officer who served the Toledo Police Department for more than 30 years. After
retiring from service as a police officer, George continued to serve the community in
various roles such as the Director of Public Safety and Justice Services for Cuyahoga
County and the Chief Deputy of the Cuyahoga County Sheriff's Department.

Wharton, Rebecca: Rebecca presently works as the HR manager for Malachite
Innovations, L.L.C. and has responsibility and oversight of over 60 company clients.
Rebecca has a history working in a multitude of HR-related positions including the
management of all aspects of HR duties and responsibilities. Rebecca also worked as a
constituent liaison for the State of Ohio's Department of Public Safety.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Board of Trustees of the Greater

Cleveland Regional Transit Authority, Cuyahoga County, Ohio:

Section 1. That candidates Elise Auvil, Jakolya Gordon, and George Taylor shall be
appointed as members of the Civilian Oversight Committee for an initial appointment term of
three (3) years.

Section 2. That candidates Timothy Clary and Steven Sims shall be appointed as
members of the Civilian Oversight Committee for an initial appointment term of two (2) years.

Section 3. That candidates David Morris and Rebecca Wharton shall be appointed as
members of the Civilian Oversight Committee for an initial appointment term of one (1) year.

Section 4. That the compensation for Civilian Oversight Committee members shall be
paid from the Secretary/Treasurer - Board of Trustees department budget.

Section 5. That this resolution shall become effective immediately upon its adoption.

Adopted: September 26, 2023

President

Attest:

Secretary-Treasurer






RESOLUTION NO. 2023-74

DELEGATING TO THE GENERAL MANAGER, CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER
THE AUTHORITY TO AUTHORIZE CHANGE ORDERS UP TO $6,500,000.00
UNDER CONTRACT NO. 2021-125 - THE PURCHASE OF REPLACEMENT RAIL
CARS

WHEREAS, the Board of Trustees of the Greater Cleveland Regional Transit Authority
(“Authority”), under Resolution No. 2023-26, authorized Contact No. 2021-125 for the purchase
of replacement rail cars in an amount not to exceed $163,920,115.00; and

WHEREAS, the Codified Rules and Regulations of the Authority (“Code Book") Section
410.01 (8):, Delegation of Authority, authorizes the General Manager Chief Executive Officer to
approve change orders on contracts in a net amount not to exceed five hundred thousand
($500,000.00) for contracts over five million dollars ($5,000,000.00); and

WHEREAS, Code Book Section 410.01(8) also states that the Board may, by resolution,
vary these limits for particular contracts or projects; and

WHEREAS, delay in the approval of change orders under Contract No. 2021-125 will
negatively impact the procurement of new rail cars by causing delays in delivery schedules and
cost increases; and

WHEREAS, staff recommends an increase in the delegation of change order authority to
the General Manager, Chief Executive Officer under Contract No. 2021-125 up to the amount of

$6,500,000.00.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Board of Trustees of the Greater
Cleveland Regional Transit Authority, Cuyahoga County, Ohio:

Section 1. That the Board of Trustees hereby delegates to the General Manager, Chief
Executive Officer the authority to authorize change orders up to the amount of $6,500,000.00
under Contract No. 2021-125 -- the purchase of replacement rail cars.

Section 2. That the General Manager, Chief Executive Officer of the Authority be and
she is hereby authorized to approve change orders on said contract at the new established limit.

Section 3. That this resolution shall become effective immediately upon its adoption.

Adopted: September 26, 2023

President

Attest:

Secretary-Treasurer
























RESOLUTION NO. 2023-76

AUTHORIZING CONTRACT NO. 2023-109 WITH APEX CONSTRUCTION &
MANAGEMENT CO., INC. FOR PROJECT NO. 19.76 — TRISKETT GARAGE
OVERHEAD DOOR REPLACEMENT IN AN AMOUNT NOT TO EXCEED $134,750.00
(RTA CAPITAL FUND, ENGINEERING & PROJECT DEVELOPMENT DEPARTMENT
BUDGET)

WHEREAS, the Greater Cleveland Regional Transit Authority (“Authority”) deems it
necessary to acquire construction services for the replacement and installation of two overhead
garage doors at Triskett Garage facility, located at 3405 Lakewood Heights Blvd., Cleveland, OH
44111, under Project 19.76 — Triskett Garage Overhead Door Replacement; and

WHEREAS, the bid of Apex Construction & Management Co., Inc., located at 24381
Aurora Road, Suite A-6, Bedford Heights, Ohio 44146, was received on August 23, 2023 in an
amount not to exceed $134,750.00; and

WHEREAS, the Authority's General Manager, Chief Executive Officer deems the bid of Apex
Construction & Management Co., Inc. to be the lowest responsive bid from a responsible bidder
and recommends acceptance thereof by the Board of Trustees.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Board of Trustees of the Greater
Cleveland Regional Transit Authority, Cuyahoga County, Ohio:

Section 1. That the bid of Apex Construction & Management Co., Inc. for Project No.
19.76 — Triskett Garage Overhead Door Replacement, be and the same is hereby accepted,

Section 2. That the General Manager, Chief Executive Officer of the Authority be and
she is hereby authorized to enter into a contract with Apex Construction & Management Co.,
Inc. for Project No. 19.76 — Triskett Garage Overhead Door Replacement.

Section 3. That said contract shall be payable from the RTA Capital Fund, Engineering &
Project Development Department budget, in an amount not to exceed $134,750.00.

Section 4. That said contract shall be binding upon and an obligation of the Authority
contingent upon compliance by the contractor to the Specifications and Addenda, if any; the
Affirmative Action Plan adopted by the Board of Trustees; bonding and insurance requirements
and all applicable laws relating to contractual obligations of the Authority.

Section 5. That the Authority's Board of Trustees expects that Apex Construction &
Management Co., Inc. will attempt to exceed the 4% minimum DBE goal assigned to this
procurement.

Section 6. That this resolution shall become effective immediately upon its adoption.

Adopted: September 26, 2023

President

Attest:

Secretary-Treasurer









RESOLUTION NO. 2023-77

AUTHORIZING CONTRACT NO. 2023-130 WITH HOLLAND LP TO PROVIDE
TRACK GEOMETRY TESTING SERVICES IN AN AMOUNT NOT TO EXCEED
$420,500.00 FOR A PERIOD OF FIVE (5) YEARS (GENERAL FUND, POWER &
WAY DEPARTMENT BUDGET)

WHEREAS, the Greater Cleveland Regional Transit Authority (*Authority”) has an
ongoing need to perform annual track geometry testing in order to identify deviations in the track

infrastructure; and

WHEREAS, R.C. Section 306.43(H)(2) provides that competitive procedures are not
required when the purchase consists of goods or services, or any combination thereof, and after
reasonable inquiry the board or any officer or employee the board designates finds that only one
source of supply is reasonably available; and

WHEREAS, the offer of Holland LP, located at 1000 Holland Drive, Crete, lllinois 60417,
to provide track geometry testing services for a period of five (5) years was received on August
24, 2023; and

WHEREAS, after negotiations, a total price not to exceed $420,500.00 for a period of
five (5) years was agreed upon; and

WHEREAS, the General Manager, Chief Executive Officer deems the offer of Holland
LP, as negotiated, to provide track geometry testing services for a period of five (5) years, to be
in the best interest of the Authority and recommends acceptance thereof by the Board of
Trustees.

NOW, THEREFCRE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Board of Trustees of the Greater
Cleveland Regional Transit Authority, Cuyahoga County, Ohio:

Section 1. That the offer of Holland LP, as negotiated, to provide track geometry testing
services for a period of five (5) years be and the same is hereby accepted.

Section 2. That the General Manager, Chief Executive Officer of the Authority be and
she is hereby authorized to enter into a contract with Holland LP to provide track geometry
testing services for a period of five (5) years.

Section 3. This contract shall be payable through the General Fund, Power & Way
Department budget in amounts not to exceed $78,000.00 FY 2023, $81,500.00 FY 2024,
$84,400.00 FY 2025, $87,000.00 FY 2026, and $89,600.00 FY 2027, for a total contract amount
not to exceed $420,500.00 for a period of five (5) years.

Section 4. That said contract shall be binding upon and an obligation of the Authority
contingent upon future funding, compliance by the contractor with the Specifications and
Addenda, if any; the Affirmative Action Plan adopted by the Board of Trustees; bonding and
insurance requirements and all applicable laws relating to contractual obligations of the
Authority.

Section 5. That the Greater Cleveland Regional Transit Authority’s Board of Trustees
expects that Holland LP will attempt to exceed the 0% minimum DBE goal assigned to this
procurement.



Resolution No. 2023-77
Page 2

Section 6. That this resolution shall become effective immediately upon its adoption.

Adopted: September 26, 2023

President

Attest:

Secretary-Treasurer






Attachment A to Staff Summary

462-01—Private sector-participation:

4 1 nll Pl = i nisl

Private-sectorpar

Eenﬂaet&-&nd—pmeu+eme&t—&ee—EIN—Ch—4—m
Proeurement-Poliecy—seeReselution 2008141

ﬁtﬂ%ﬂﬂ&ﬁkﬁﬂbﬁﬂ%ﬁ&—ﬂﬁ—ﬁﬁéﬁéﬂg—hﬁﬂ&ﬂ@ﬂﬁ@t%@hﬂﬁ%@ ﬂ
Res—2016-88—Passed 9-27-16)



RESOLUTION NO. 2023-78

REMOVING CHAPTER 462 PRIVATE SECTOR PARTICIPATION FROM THE
CODIFIED RULES AND REGULATIONS OF THE GREATER CLEVELAND
REGIONAL TRANSIT AUTHORITY

WHEREAS, pursuant to Resolution No. 1989-176, the Board of Trustees of the Greater
Cleveland Regional Transit Authority (“Authority”) codified the resolutions establishing its
policies and procedures; and

WHEREAS, the Authority has conducted a review and determined that Chapter 462
Private Sector Participation should be removed from the Codified Rules and Regulations of the
Greater Cleveland Regional Transit Authority (“Code Book”).

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Board of Trustees of the Greater
Cleveland Regional Transit Authority, Cuyahoga County, Ohio:

Section 1. That Code Book Chapter 462 Private Sector Participation is hereby
removed in its entirety.

Section 2. That the Board of Trustees hereby waives the fourteen-day period provided
for in Article XI, Section 2 of the Bylaws.

Section 3. That this resolution shall become effective immediately upon its adoption.

Adopted: September 26, 2023

President

Attest:

Secretary-Treasurer









Attachment A to Staff Summary

SENEErE;
t—wﬁh—(ngRTA—ti*aﬂapm-Emen

5 5 o i‘
Hieation-andreporting
ent-andresolution-of

au}}pw&-and—beé :

ﬂHm%e&aﬂﬁ&—ﬁﬂd—H&Hﬁ}g—HWﬁﬂgh&&HhuG&MA—
@—GG%H—A—I\'I&H&gement—wﬂl—eemmemef&te—aﬂ—empi )

in-achievine G

('g')—FGHﬂGIG-}Hf@Em&HOiHEfGE %{)—R’FA—Saiet-v—Rk&eﬁ—
(Rea—2001-119 Passed 8- s _ .







Attachment B to Staff Summary

« Establishing a culture whereby management leads by example.

* Engaging in emerging risk/hazard identification and analysis in order to eliminate or mitigate
risks,

= Ensuring no action will be taken against any employee who discloses a safety concern
according to the GCRTA Non-Punitive Hazard Reporting Policy and ensuring open, honast
communication will be a result of any concern brought forth.

« Complying with federal, state, and GCRTA safety-related requirements, rules, and standards.
» Ensuring all departmental staffs are provided with appropriate safety-related information and
training, are competent in Safety Management matters, and are allocated only tasks
commensurate with their skills.

« Measuring safety performance against SMART goals.

* Continuously improving the safety performance through data analysis, informed decision

making, and appropriate resource allocation.
+ Ensuring external systems and services supporting GCRTA meet GCRTA safety standards.







1098.02 APPLICATION OF POLICY.

This policy applies to all employees, departments and functions throughout the
Authority. Full participation by all staff is required in order to meet the commitments
set forth in this policy. This policy will be communicated to all persons, including
contractors and vendors, working for or on behalf of GCRTA.

(Res. 2013-108. Passed 10-22-13; Res. 2014-110. Passed 10-21-14; Res. 2017-101.
Passed 11-21-17.)



RESOLUTION NO. 2023-79

REMOVING SECTION 648.07 SAFETY POLICY AND AMENDING CHAPTER
1098 COMMITMENT ON ENVIRONMENTAL POLICY OF THE CODIFIED
RULES AND REGULATIONS OF THE GREATER CLEVELAND REGIONAL
TRANSIT AUTHORITY AND AMENDING PERSONNEL POLICY 600.07
SAFETY POLICY

WHEREAS, pursuant to Resolution No. 1989-176, the Board of Trustees of the Greater
Cleveland Regional Transit Authority ("Authority”) codified the resolutions establishing its
policies and procedures; and

WHEREAS, the Authority has conducted a review and determined that Section 648.07
Safety Policy should be removed from the Codified Rules and Regulations of the Greater
Cleveland Regional Transit Authority (“Code Book”); and

WHEREAS, the Authority has also determined that Code Book Chapter 1098
Commitment on Environmental Policy and Personnel Policy 600.07 should be amended to reflect
the language of the updated Public Transportation Agency Safety Plan (“PTASP”) adopted by
the Board of Trustees in December 2022.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Board of Trustees of the Greater
Cleveland Regional Transit Authority, Cuyahoga County, Ohio:

Section 1. That Code Book Section 648.07 Safety Policy is hereby removed in its
entirety.

Section 2. That Code Book Chapter 1098 Commitment on Environmental Policy is
hereby amended to read as specified in Attachment A hereto.

Section 3. That Personnel Policy 600.07 Safety Policy is hereby amended to read as
specified in Attachment B hereto.

Section 4. That the Board of Trustees hereby waives the fourteen-day period provided
for in Article XI, Section 2 of the Bylaws.

Section 5. That this resolution shall become effective immediately upon its adoption.

Attachments: A. Chapter 1098 Commitment on Environmental Policy
B. Personnel Policy 600.07 Safety Policy

Adopted: September 26, 2023

President

Attest:

Secretary-Treasurer



Attachment A to Staff Summary

CHAPTER 1098
Commitment on Environmental Policy

1098.01 Policy statement. 1098.02 Application of Policy.

1098.01 POLICY STATEMENT.

GCRTA 1s committed to protecting the environment as it provides public transit
services to Northeast Ohio. The Authority utilizes sound business practices that
measure and improve our environmental and sustainability performance and makes
the following environmental commitments:

(a) Communicate and advance the use of environmental practices
throughout GCRTA.

(b) Comply with all applicable local, state, federal, and other
environmental laws, regulations, standards and monitoring
requirements.

(c) Incorporating environmental responsibility into business operations by
planning for environmental protection, reviewing and developing
policies, providing resources, setting targets, and reviewing and
auditing performance.

(d) Prevention of pollution and conservation of resources, by reducing energy
and water consumption, increasing reuse and recycling, and procuring
sustainable products and technologies.

(Res. 2013-108. Passed 10-22-13; Res. 2014-110. Passed 10-21-14;
Res. 2017-101. Passed 11-21-17; Res. 2019-123. Passed 12-17-19. Res.
2923-XXX. Passed XX-XX-23.)

1098.02 APPLICATION OF POLICY.

This policy applies to all employees, departments and functions throughout the
Authority. Full participation by all staff is required in order to meet the commitments
set forth in this policy. This policy will be communicated to all persons, including
contractors and vendors, working for or on behalf of GCRTA.

(Res. 2013-108. Passed 10-22-13; Res. 2014-110. Passed 10-21-14; Res. 2017-101.
Passed 11-21-17.)



Attachment B to Resolution

600.07 SAFETY MANAGEMENT POLICY STATEMENT

The Greater Cleveland Regional Transit Authority (GCRTA) was organized to provide safe,
reliable, clean and courteous public transportation services to all users. Safety is a primary
concern that affects all levels of GCRTA activities including: operations; maintenance; planning;
design; construction; procurement; testing; and training for all modes of transportation.
Therefore, all GCRTA personnel are charged with the responsibility of promoting the safety and
security of passengers, employees, and the general public who come in contact with GCRTA
transportation systems.

The safety and security of our customers and our employees are GCRTA's greatest
responsibility. In addition, all employees and contractors of the GCRTA are expected to conduct
their duties in a safe manner that will prevent collisions, reduce injuries, and avoid property
damage.

Each employee must operate safely by using equipment, tools and materials properly, and be
familiar with work rules and procedures for their areas of responsibility. Each employee shall
take an active role in the identification and reporting of hazards. Supervisors shall actively
participate in the assessment and resolution of hazards and shall fully cooperate with Safety staff
to eliminate or control hazards in all areas of GCRTA transportation systems.

GCRTA Management will provide leadership in promoting safety throughout the organization.
The General Manager, Chief Executive Officer and the executive staff will be continually and
directly involved in formulating, reviewing and revising the Safety Policy and safety goals and
objectives. GCRTA management will provide the authority, support and resources — financial
and material — to establish and maintain high safety standards in operations, maintenance,
and training throughout the GCRTA.

Safety is promoted through adherence to our Safety Management System (SMS) with its
pillars of Safety Management Policy, Safety Risk Management, Safety Assurance, and Safety
Promotion. Management across the organization is expected to adhere to the GCRTA SMS
Framework and understand the pillars of our SMS, which is appropriately scaled to the size,
scope, and complexity of the GCRTA. Executive Management is committed to ensuring staff
obtains the needed training to enforce our SMS.

Every GCRTA employee and contractor shall comply with the provisions of the Agency Safety
Plan and shall fully cooperate with Safety staff in achieving GCRTA's safety goals and

objectives.

The Greater Cleveland Regional Transit Authority is committed to:

« |Instilling a just Safety Culture that fosters safe practices, encourages effective employee
safety reporting and communication, and values the SMS as equally as other organizational
management systems.

« Supporting the SMS with the appropriate financial resources.

= Establishing safety as the primary responsibility of all employees.

* Holding departments/districts responsible for their safety performance.

* Establishing a culture whereby management leads by example.

« Engaging in emerging risk/hazard identification and analysis in order to eliminate or mitigate

risks.
» Ensuring no action will be taken against any employee who discloses a safety concern



Attachment B to Resolution

according to the GCRTA Non-Punitive Hazard Reporting Policy and ensuring open, honest
communication will be a result of any concern brought forth.

= Complying with federal, state, and GCRTA safety-related requirements, rules, and standards.
* Ensuring all departmental staffs are provided with appropriate safety-related information and
training, are competent in Safety Management matters, and are allocated only tasks
commensurate with their skills.

« Measuring safety performance against SMART goals.

+ Continuously improving the safety performance through data analysis, informed decision
making, and appropriate resource allocation.

= Ensuring external systems and services supporting GCRTA meet GCRTA safety standards.












Attachment A to Resolution

(f) The Authority will determine the interior and exterior spaces that will
serve as appropriate locations for all advertising. The Authority reserves the right
to modify, change, or alter the locations and sizes of the available advertisement
spaces. The placement and size of any advertisement shall be at the sole discretion

of the Authority.

(g) The Authority may, at the sole discretion of the General Manager, Chief
Executive Officer, cause to be removed any advertising that does not conform to this

Policy.

(h) The General Manager, Chief Executive Officer is authorized to issue and
amend procedures to implement this policy without further approval of the Board of
Trustees.
























DRAFT
LICENSE AGREEMENT

Date: , 2023

1. LICENSE

This License Agreement ("License") is effective as of October 1, 2023 and is
entered into between the Greater Cleveland Regional Transit Authority, a political
subdivision of the State of Ohio ("Licensor") and Lamar Advertising of Youngstown,
Inc., dba Lamar Advertising of Cleveland, OH, a Delaware Corporation ("Licensee").
Licensor hereby grants to Licensee a License on the real estate located in the City of
Cleveland in the County of Cuyahoga in the State of Ohio ("Property") whose street
addresses, permanent parcel numbers and location maps are attached as Exhibit A. The
License is for the purpose of erecting, maintaining, operating, improving, supplementing,
posting, painting, illuminating, repairing, repositioning and/or removing outdoor
advertising structures, including, without limitation, fixture connections, electrical supply
and connections, panels, signs, copy and any equipment and accessories as Licensee
may place thereon in accordance with local building standards (collectively, the
"Structures"). This License includes all reasonable and necessary rights of ingress and
egress. Licensee may trim any trees and vegetation currently on the Property as often as
Licensee in its sole discretion deems appropriate to prevent obstruction of the view of the
advertising copy on the Structures. The authority granted by Licensor to Licensee to
install, maintain and operate the Structures is expressly subject to all the terms and
provisions of this License, including, but not limited to, those provisions, restrictions and
reservations relating to the operation, maintenance and removal of Structures. Licensee
has had an opportunity to inspect the Property and Licensee acknowledges that it is fully
familiar with the Property. Licensee acknowledges that Licensor has made no
representation or warranty of any kind whatsoever to Licensee, express or implied,
concerning the condition, safety, fithess for use of the Property or any common areas,
suitability for any purpose whatsoever, or state of repair thereof, and Licensee accepts
the Property in its "present" condition, "as is, where is." Advertising on the Structures shall
comply with Licensor's Advertising Policy and Administrative Procedure, attached hereto
as Exhibit B, and be in good taste and in accordance with all laws.

2. ACCESS

Licensor shall have the right to establish, modify and enforce against Licensee
reasonable rules and regulations concerning the use of the Property. Licensee shall have
non-exclusive access to the Property at all reasonable times for the purpose of operating,
maintaining and making inspections and repairs to Licensee's Structures. Licensee's
employees, invitees and guests, are prohibited from parking trucks or vehicles on the
Property except as required for operating, maintaining and making inspections and
repairs to Licensee's Structures. Licensor shall not be liable for any damage to any
Structure or motor vehicle of Licensee's, Licensee's employees, invitees or guests.



3.  TERM: TERMINATION

(a)  Subject to the parties' rights to terminate as described in this paragraph and
paragraphs 6 and 14 of this License, this License shall be for a term of five (5) years
("Term"), commencing on October 1, 2023 (the "Commencement Date") and ending on
September 30, 2028.

(b) Either party may terminate this License for any reason by giving the other
party 90 days advance notice to terminate as of the end of the then current License year.

(c) If, in Licensee's reasonable opinion, the view of any Structure advertising
copy becomes entirely or partially obstructed by Licensor and Licensor does not correct
the condition within thirty (30) days after receipt of notice from Licensee, then Licensee
may immediately at its option (1) seek Licensor's approval to relocate its Structure to
another location on the same parcel, which approval may be granted at Licensor's sole
discretion; (2) negotiate a reduction in license fees in direct proportion to the loss suffered;
or (3) deliver to Licensor a notice of intention to terminate this License with respect to the
affected Structure. When the termination is effective, the amount of the final license fee
payment shall be pro-rated, and Licensee shall have no obligation to pay fees for periods
after the date of the termination.

(d) If (1) Licensee is prevented from obtaining or maintaining any necessary
permit for erection, use and maintenance of a Structure by circumstances outside of its
control; (2) a Structure’s use is prevented by any federal, state or local law, regulation or
ordinance; or (3) Licensee chooses not to maintain a permit or comply with any
requirement stated in paragraph 10(a) with respect to a particular Structure, then
Licensee may immediately deliver to Licensor a notice of intention to terminate this
License with respect to the affected Structure. The Licensee will have 30 days after the
date it delivers the notice of intention to terminate to remove Licensee's Structure(s) and
below-ground concrete and restore the Property to the same or as good condition as it
was in prior to installation of the Structures, and following such removal the termination
shall be effective with respect to that Structure.

(e) Anything herein to the contrary notwithstanding, Licensor shall have no
liability or obligation to Licensee or anyone claiming under or through Licensee for any
injury, loss of revenue, business interruption, inconvenience or cost of remaving its
Structures. Any such removal or relocation shall be at Licensee's cost.

(H If Licensee removes its Structures or fails to maintain permits for the
erection, use and/or maintenance of its Structures or comply with any requirement stated
in paragraph 10(a), Licensor may terminate this License with 30 days advance written
notice.

(@) Upon termination for any reason, Licensee shall have 30 days to remove
Licensee's Structures and below-ground concrete and restore the Property to the same






have the right to terminate this License under paragraphs 3, 12 and 13.

T LICENSOR AUTHORITY

Licensor represents that it is the owner (or owner's authorized agent) of the
Property and has the authority to enter into this License.

8. NOTICEOF PAYMENT ADDRESS

Payments shall be submitted to: Greater Cleveland Regional Transit Authority,
Attn: Accounts Receivable, 1240 West 6" St., Cleveland, Ohio 44113.

9. NOTICE

Any notice to any party under this License shall be in writing by certified or
registered mail, and shall be effective on the earlier of (a) the date when delivered and
receipted for by a person at the address specified within this License, or (b) the date which
is three (3) days after mailing (postage prepaid) by certified or registered mail, return
receipt requested, to such address; provided that in either case notices shall be delivered
to such other address as shall have been specified in writing by such party to all parties
hereto prior to the notice being delivered.

Notices to Licensor shall be addressed as follows:

Greater Cleveland Regional Transit Authority

1240 West 6" Street

Cleveland, Ohio 44113-1331

Attention: India L. Birdsong Terry, General Manager, Chief Executive Officer
And a copy to the same address, Attention: Property Manager

Notices to Licensee shall be addressed as follows:

Tim Gerity, General Manager

Lamar Advertising of Cleveland, OH

12222 Plaza Drive

Parma, Ohio 44130

And a copy to the same address, Attention: Scott Rowland, Real Estate Manager

Licensee or Licensor may from time to time designate by written notice to the other, in
accordance with the terms of this License, a new address for the mailing of notices.

10. COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS

(a) Licensee shall promptly perform and comply with all statutes, ordinances,



rules, orders, regulations and requirements of the federal, state and municipal
governments, and of all of their departments and bureaus having jurisdiction or
agreements with Licensor applicable to the Property or Licensee's Structures on the
Property, use of the Property and nuisances or other grievances in, upon or connected
with such use during the term of this License.

(b)  Licensee shall obtain at its own cost and maintain throughout the term of
this License all licenses and permits required for the operation and future removal of
Licensee's Structures, and any improvements, if any, made by Licensee, from or on the
Property. All such licenses and permits shall remain the property of Licensee. Licensee
covenants and agrees to pay all fees, charges, taxes and assessments, now or hereafter
imposed, foreseen, and unforeseen, that may be due, levied or assessed against
Licensee or Licensee's Structure, or Licensee's business during the term of this License.
Licensee shall also pay all taxes and assessments that may be due, levied or assessed
upon this License, or that arise as a result of this License or Licensee's use of the
Property. In addition, Licensee shall also pay, prior to the time the same shall become
delinquent, all taxes and assessments of any nature whatsoever imposed by any
governmental authority on (or resulting from Licensee's installation of) Licensee's
Structures.

11.  LIENS

Licensee shall keep the Property free and clear of any lien or encumbrance of any
kind whatsoever created by Licensee's acts or omissions, and further will not directly or
indirectly create, incur, assume or suffer to exist any materialman's, mechanic's,
workmen's, repairmen's or any other similar lien. Licensor's interest in the Property further
shall not be subject to liens for improvements, if any, made by Licensee, and Licensee
shall have no power or authority to create any lien or permit any lien to attach to the
present estate, reversions or other estate of Licensor in the Property as a result of
improvements made by Licensee for any other cause or reason. Licensee acknowledges
that such liens are expressly prohibited and that all persons performing work for Licensee
must look solely to Licensee to secure payment for any work done or material furnished
in connection with improvements and work made or performed by Licensee during the
term of this License. Licensee covenants and agrees to transfer any claimed or asserted
lien to a bond or such other security as may be permitted by law within three (3) days
after Licensee is given written notice of the assertion of any such lien or claim of lien.
Licensee shall advise all persons furnishing designs, labor, materials or services to the
Property in connection with Licensee's improvements thereof of the foregoing provisions.
Licensee shall hold Licensor harmless from all costs and liabilities incurred as a result of
such liens or claims.

12.  EVENTS OF DEFAULT

The following events shall be deemed to be events of default by Licensee under
this License:



(a) If Licensee fails to pay any installment of its license fees when due, or any
other payment or reimbursement to Licensor required herein when due, and such failure
shall continue for a period of ten (10) business days after receipt of written notice from
Licensor to Licensee; or

(b) If Licensee shall become insolvent, or shall make a transfer in fraud of
creditors, or shall make an assignment for the benefit of creditors; or

(c) If Licensee shall file a petition under any paragraph or chapter of the Federal
Bankruptcy Code, as amended, or under any similar law or statute of the United States
or any State thereof; or Licensee shall be adjudged bankrupt or insolvent in proceedings
filed against Licensee hereunder; or

(d) If a receiver or trustee shall be appointed for all or substantially all of the
assets of Licensee: or

(e) If Licensee shall fail to comply with any other term, provision, condition or
covenant of this License, and shall not cure such failure within thirty (30) business days
after written notice thereof is given by Licensor; or

()  If Licensee remains on the Property after the end of the Term (or any agreed
upon extension of the Term) and has not either (1) entered into a renewed License with
Licensor or (2) entered into negotiations to renew the License in accordance with the
provisions of paragraph 3(h) above.

13. REMEDIES

(a) Upon the occurrence of any of the events of default described above,
Licensor shall have the option to pursue any one or more of the following remedies:

(i) Licensor may terminate this License, in which event Licensee shall
immediately surrender the Property to Licensor, and if Licensee fails to do so, Licensor
may, without prejudice to any other remedy which it may have for possession or
arrearages in license fees, enter upon and take possession of the Property and expel or
remove Licensee’s Structures or any part thereof without being liable for prosecution or
any claim of damages therefor; and Licensee agrees to pay to Licensor the amount of all
loss and damage which Licensor may suffer by reason of such termination.

(ii) Licensor may enter upon the Property without being liable for
prosecution or any claim for damages therefor, and do whatever Licensee is required to
do under the terms of this License,; and Licensee agrees to reimburse Licensor for any
expenses which Licensor may incur in thus effecting compliance with Licensee's
obligations under this License, and Licensee further agrees that Licensor shall not be
liable for any damages resulting to Licensee from such action, whether caused by the
negligence of Licensor or otherwise.



(b) Pursuit of any of the foregoing remedies shall not preclude pursuit of any
of the other remedies herein provided or any other remedies provided by law or in equity,
nor shall pursuit of any remedy herein provided constitute a forfeiture or waiver of any
license fees due to Licensor hereunder or of any damages accruing to Licensor by reason
of the violation of any of the terms, provisions and covenants herein contained. No act or
thing done by Licensor or its agents during the Term hereby granted shall be deemed a
termination of this License or an acceptance of the surrender of the Property, and no
agreement to terminate this License or accept a surrender of said Property shall be valid
unless in writing signed by Licensor.

14.  ASSUMPTION OF RISK; DAMAGE OR DESTRUCTION

Subject to the provisions contained in Section 6 above, Licensee assumes all risks
of damage or loss to Licensee's Structures, if any, from fire, windstorm, hurricane and
other acts of God, and from condemnation and any other event beyond Licensor's control.
In the event the Property or any part thereof shall be damaged or destroyed by fire,
windstorm, hurricane or other act of God, or from condemnation or any other event
beyond Licensor's control, if any such damage renders all or a substantial portion of the
Property unfit for the purpose intended, either Licensor or Licensee shall have the right
to terminate this License, in accordance with the terms of paragraph 3 above, by giving
written notice to the other at any time within ninety (90) days after the date of such
damage, condemnation or other event. The Licensee will have 30 days after the date it
delivered the notice of intention to terminate to remove Licensee's Structures and below-
ground concrete and restore the Property to the same or as good condition as it was in
prior to installation of the Structures, and following such removal the termination shall be
effective, in which event, if Licensee is not otherwise in default, the amount of the final
license fee payment shall be pro-rated from the effective date of the termination. Licensor
shall have no duty or obligation to repair or restore Property and shall not have any liability
or obligation to Licensee, or anyone claiming under or through Licensee, for any injury,
loss of revenue, business interruption, inconvenience or cost of finding and installing its
Structures at an alternative site.

15. NOINTEREST IN REALTY

This License shall not at any time be interpreted to constitute a lease or sublease
nor shall the same be interpreted as granting to Licensee any rights in or to the Property
or any part thereof, except license rights for the purpose of constructing and maintaining
the Structures as otherwise provided herein.

16. INSURANCE

(a) The Licensee shall obtain and maintain for the life of this License the
following minimum insurance coverage. Such insurance shall protect the Licensee from
claims which may arise out of or result from the Licensee's operations under this License
and for which the Licensee may be legally liable, whether such operations be by the
Licensee or by a subcontractor or by anyone employed directly or indirectly by any of



them, or by anyone for whose acts any of them may be liable.

Approval by the Licensor: Approval of the insurance by the Licensor shall not relieve or
decrease the liability of the Licensee hereunder. The Licensor does not in any way
represent that the insurance or the limits of insurance specified herein are sufficient or
adequate to protect the Licensee's interests or liabilities,

In the event the Licensee neglects, refuses or fails to provide the insurance required
under the License, or if such insurance is cancelled for any reason, the Licensor shall
have the right but not the duty to procure the same, and costs thereof shall be charged to
the Licensee.

Licensor reserves the right to request a copy of all policies and endorsements prescribed
herein.

1) Commercial General Liability (CGL) Insurance in the amount of
$5,000,000 combined single limit each occurrence for bodily injury and/or
property damage and with a $5,000,000 annual aggregate.

2) Business Automobile Liability (BAL) Insurance in the amount of
$1,000,000.00 combined single limit each accident for bodily injury and/or
property damage. Said policy shall apply to all owned, leased, hired and
non-owned vehicles used in connection with the work.

3) Statutory Workers' Compensation Coverage in compliance with all
applicable state workers' compensation laws to cover all employees
furnishing labor under the terms of this License and under the control of the
Licensee. Employers' Liability coverage in the amount of $1,000,000 per
accident/ $1,000,000 per employee for disease will also be included, either
under the Workers' Compensation policy or under the Commercial General
Liability policy (Stop Gap) referenced under 1) above. In Ohio, a copy of a
certificate of premium payment from the Industrial commission and Bureau
of Workers Compensation, or a copy of the Certificate of Employer's Right
to Pay Compensation Directly.

General Requirements: The Licensee shall not have access to the Property until it has
obtained the required insurance and has received written approval of such insurance by
the Licensor. Licensee shall furnish evidence of such insurance in the form of a
certificate (Accord or similar form).

Licensor will accept any combination of primary CGL along with Excess or Umbrella
policies, as well as primary BAL along with Excess or Umbrella policies to meet the
minimum coverage requirements contained herein.

(b)  The certificate shall provide the following:



1)

8)

(c)

The policy shall be written on an occurrence basis. If any insurance
specified above is written on a "Claims Made" (rather than an "occurrence"
basis), then, in addition, to the coverage requirements stated herein,
Licensee shall:

. Ensure that the Retroactive Date is shown on the policy, and such
date shall be before the Effective Date of this License.

. Maintain and provide evidence of similar insurance for at least three
(3) years following termination of this License, including the
requirement of adding all additional insureds; and

If insurance is cancelled or non-renewed and not replaced with
another claims-made policy form with a Retroactive Date prior to the
License Effective Date, Licensee shall purchase "extended
reporting" coverage for a minimum of three (3) years after completion
of the work.

Name the Licensor as an additional insured for all CGL and BAL liability
coverage for claims arising out of operations in conjunction with the License.

Contain a waiver of subrogation in favor of the Licensor.

Specify that the insurance is primary and non-contributory as respects any
insurance or self-insurance programs maintained by Licensor.

Contain a specific reference to the subject License.
Specify all deductibles & Self-Insured Retentions (SIR), as applicable.

In the event the insurance should be changed or cancelled, such change or
cancellation shall not be effective until 15 days after the Licensor has
received written notice of such change or cancellation from the Licensee.
Such notice shall be mailed by certified mail, return receipt requested, to
the Licensor's Property Manager.

An insurance company having less than an A-X rating by The A. M. Best
Company will not be considered acceptable. All certificates are subject to
acceptance by the Licensor. The Licensor shall be entitled to receive a full
copy of the insurance policy(ies) upon request and reserves the right to
review financial statements and approve any deductibles or SIR.

In the event that any third party shall work on the Property for Licensee,

such third party shall provide Licensor and Licensee with certificates of insurance meeting
the minimum coverage limits and conforming fo such other requirements stated in
paragraph 16(a) above for Licensee.



17.

18.

19.

INDEMNIFICATION

To the fullest extent permitted by law and to the full extent of Licensee's intentional,
reckless or negligent acts or omissions, the Licensee shall, at its sole cost and expense,
indemnify, defend, satisfy all judgments, and hold harmless Licensor and its officials,
agents, representatives, and employees from and against all claims, actions, judgments,
costs, penalties, liabilities, damages, losses and expenses, including but not limited to
attorney's fees and worker's compensation benefits, for Licensee's intentional, reckless
or negligent acts or omissions arising out of or resulting from the subject matter of this
License, or the acts or omissions of any person or contracted entity directly or indirectly
employed or contracted by Licensee.

In the event of negligence or intentional acts or omissions by more than one entity,
responsibility for such negligence or intentional acts or omissions will be allocated in
accordance with the proportionate share of such entity's(ies’) negligence or intentional
acts or omissions. Nothing herein shall be construed as making Licensee liable for any
claims, actions, judgments, costs, penalties, liabilities, damages or losses and expenses
caused by the sole negligence and/or misconduct of Licensor.

To the extent that any portion of this provision is found to be in violation of any applicable
law, said portion(s) of this provision are stricken but all remaining portions of this provision
shall remain in full force and effect.

DISCLAIMER

Licensor shall have no liability to Licensee or anyone claiming under or through
Licensee for (i) any injury, loss of revenue, business interruption, inconvenience, loss or
damage to Licensee caused by failure of equipment, or the malfunctioning or interruption
of any service, utility, facility, or installation supplied by Licensee or Licensor, the
principals, employees, or agents of each, or any other person, or (ii) for the making of any
alteration of, or improvement or repair to the Property, Licensor's equipment or the
equipment of other users located in or on the Property, whether required by any
governmental agency, or due to casualty, or for any other reason.

ESTOPPEL CERTIFICATE, ATTORNMENT, SUBORDINATION AND RECORDING

Licensee acknowledges and agrees that this License is and shall be subject and
subordinate to any mortgage now existing or hereafter placed by Licensor upon the
Property or any structure thereon. Within ten (10) days after the request by Licensor,
Licensee shall deliver to Licensor, without charge or expense to Licensor, a written and
acknowledged statement certifying, if true, that Licensee is in possession of the Property,
that this License is unmodified and in full force and effect (or if there have been
modifications, that the License is in full force and effect, as modified, and stating the
modifications), and the dates to which the license fees and other charges have been paid
in advance, if any. It is intended that any such statement delivered pursuant to this

10



20.

21.

22.

23.

paragraph may be relied upon by any prospective purchaser or lender or the mortgagee,
beneficiary, or guarantees of any security or interest, or any assignees of any such parties
under any mortgage now or hereafter given by Licensor.

ASSIGNMENT

(a) By Licensee. Licensee shall have no right to sell, convey, assign, sublet,
pledge, encumber or otherwise transfer its rights or obligations under this License, in
whole or in part, without the prior written consent of Licensor. Consent to any one or more
of such transfers or encumbrances shall not be deemed to waive Licensor's right to
approve any further encumbrance or transfer. Approval of an encumbrance shall not be
deemed approval or permission for a transfer to occur without such consents in the event
of default thereunder and the attempted enforcement by foreclosure or seizure of
Licensee's Structures. Any transfer by operation of law, merger, consolidation or joint
venture shall be deemed an assignment for purposes of this License. Any sale,
assignment, conveyance, mortgage, pledge, encumbrance or other transfer or attempted
sale, assignment, conveyance, mortgage, pledge, encumbrance or other transfer of
Licensee's rights under this License without the prior written consent of Licensor shall be
void and shall constitute a breach of this License.

(b) By Licensor: This License shall inure to the benefit of Licensor's
successors, assignees and affiliates. Licensor and any subsequent assignee may freely
assign this License to any party, provided that such party assumes and agrees in writing
to perform all of the Licensor's obligations hereunder, and upon such event, Licensor shall
automatically and entirely be released from all covenants and obligations under this
License from and after the date of such assignment. Licensor shall not be required to
obtain the consent of Licensee regarding an assignment of this License.

BINDING EFFECT

Each term and each provision of this License to be performed by Licensee shall
be construed to be both an independent covenant and a condition. The reference to
successors and assigns of Licensee is not intended to constitute a consent by Licensor
to any assignment or transfer by Licensee, but has reference only to those instances in
which Licensor may have given consent to a particular assignment.

GOVERNING LAW

The validity, interpretation, and effect of this License shall be governed by the laws
of the State of Ohio.

HAZARDOUS MATERIALS

(a)(i) Licensee shall not cause or permit any Hazardous Material (as hereinafter
defined) to be brought upon, kept or used in or about the Property by Licensee, its agents,

11



principals, employees, contractors, consultants or invitees (or any other person on the
Property claiming its right of entry by or through Licensee) without the prior written
consent of Licensor, which consent may be withheld for any reason whatsoever or for no
reason at all. If Licensee breaches the obligations stated in the preceding sentence, or if
the presence of Hazardous Material on the Property caused or permitted by Licensee (or
the aforesaid others) results in contamination of the Property or the surrounding area(s),
or if contamination of the Property or the surrounding area(s) by Hazardous Material
otherwise occurs for which Licensee is legally, actually or factually liable or responsible,
then Licensee shall fully and completely indemnify, defend and hold harmless Licensor
(or any party claiming by, through or under Licensor) from any and all claims, judgments,
damages, penalties, fines, costs, liabilities, expenses or losses including, without
limitation: (i) diminution in the value of the Property and/or the land on which the Structure
is located and/or any adjoining area(s) which Licensor owns or in which it holds a property
interest; (ii) any asserted damage to neighboring properties or the occupants of such
properties, and (iii) any sums paid in settlement of claims, attorneys' fees, consultants
fees and expert fees which arise or arose before, during or after the Term of this License
as a consequence of such contamination. This indemnification of Licensor by Licensee
includes, without limitation, costs incurred in connection with any investigation of site
conditions or any clean up, remediation, removal or restoration work required by any
federal, state or local governmental agency or political subdivision because of Hazardous
Material present in the soil or ground water on or under the Property. Without limiting the
foregoing, if the presence of any Hazardous Material on, under or about the Property or
the surrounding area(s) caused or permitted contamination of the Property or the
surrounding area(s), Licensee shall immediately take all actions at its sole expense as
are necessary or appropriate to return the Property and the surrounding area(s) to the
condition existing prior to the introduction of any such Hazardous Material thereto;
provided that Licensor's prior written approval of such actions by Licensee shall be first
obtained. The foregoing obligations and responsibilities of Licensee shall survive the
expiration or earlier termination of this License.

(ii) As used herein, the term "Hazardous Material" means any hazardous or toxic
substance, material or waste that is or becomes regulated under any applicable local,
state or federal ordinance, regulation or law. "Hazardous Material" includes any and all
material or substances which are defined as "hazardous waste", "extremely hazardous
waste" or a "hazardous substance" pursuant to local, state or federal governmental
ordinance, regulation or law. "Hazardous substance" includes, but is not restricted to,
asbestos, polychlorobiphenyls ("PCB's") and petroleum.

(b) Licensor and its agents shall have the right, but not the duty, to inspect the
Property at any time to determine whether Licensee is complying with the terms of this
paragraph. If Licensee is not in compliance with this paragraph, Licensor shall have the
right to immediately enter upon the Property to remedy any contamination caused by
Licensee's failure to comply, notwithstanding any other provision of this License. Licensor
shall not be liable for any interference caused thereby. Further, any noncompliance by
Licensee with its duties, responsibilities and obligations under this paragraph, which is
not corrected within 30 days of its occurrence, shall be a default of this License by

12



24,

25.

26.

Licensee. No notice by Licensor to Licensee shall be required.

SEVERABILITY

If any term or provision of this License, or the application thereof to any person or
circumstance shall, to any extent, be invalid or unenforceable, the remainder of this
License, or the application of such term or provision to persons or circumstances other
than those as to which it is held invalid or unenforceable, shall not be affected thereby,
as long as the general intent and material benefits negotiated by each of the parties shall
not be substantially diminished or impaired, and each term and provision of this License
shall be valid and enforced to the fullest extent permitted by law.

EFFECT OF WAIVER

No waiver by Licensor of any violation or breach of any of the terms, provisions
and covenants herein contained shall be deemed or construed to constitute a waiver of
any other violation or breach of any of the terms, provisions and covenants herein
contained. Licensor's acceptance of the payment of the license fees, or a portion of the
license fees due, or other payments hereunder after the commencement by Licensor to
enforce one or more of the remedies herein provided upon an event of default shall not
be deemed or construed to constitute a waiver of such default or Licensor's right to
enforce any such remedies with respect to such default or any subsequent default.

AUDITS AND INSPECTION

Licensee shall maintain books, records, documents, and other evidence directly
pertinent to the performance under this License in accordance with generally accepted
accounting principles and practices consistently applied and Federal Acquisition
Regulations, Parts 30 and 31, as applicable. Licensor and its authorized representatives
shall have the right to audit, to examine and to make copies of or extracts from all financial
and related records (in whatever form they may be kept, whether written, electronic, or
other) relating to or pertaining to this License kept by or under the control of the Licensee,
including, but not limited to those kept by the Licensee, its employees, agents, assigns,
successors and sublicensees. Such records shall include, but not be limited to,
accounting records, written policies and procedures; subcontract files; all paid vouchers
including those for out-of-pocket expenses; other reimbursement supported by invoices;
ledgers; cancelled checks; deposit slips; bank statements; journals; original estimates;
estimating work sheets; contract amendments and change order files; back charge logs
and supporting documentation; insurance documents; payroll documents; timesheets;
memoranda; and correspondence. Licensee shall, at all times during the Term of this
License and for a period of three years after the completion of this License, maintain such
records, together with such supporting or underlying documents and materials. The
Licensee shall at any time requested by Licensor, whether during or after completion of
this License, and at Licensee's own expense make such records available for inspection
and audit (including copies and extracts of records as required) by Licensor. Such records
shall be made available to Licensor during normal business hours at the Licensee's office

13



27.

28.

or place of business. In the event that no such location is available, then the financial
records, together with the supporting or underlying documents and records, shall be made
available for audit at a time and location that is convenient for Licensor. Licensee shall
ensure Licensor has these rights with Licensee's employees, agents, assigns,
successors, and sublicensees, and the obligations of these rights shall be explicitly
included in any subcontracts or agreements formed between the Licensee and any
sublicensees to the extent that those subcontracts or agreements relate to fulfillment of
the Licensee's obligations to Licensor. If the audit discovers substantive findings related
to fraud, misrepresentation, or non-performance, Licensor may recoup the costs of the
audit work from the Licensee. Any adjustments and/or payments that must be made as a
result of any such audit or inspection of the Licensee's invoices and/or records shall be
made within a reasonable amount of time (not to exceed 90 days) from presentation of
Licensor's findings to Licensee.

HEADINGS

The headings in this License are solely for convenience or reference and shall not
affect its interpretation.

ENTIRE AGREEMENT

This License constitutes the full and complete understanding between the parties
regarding the Property and/or the Structures and supersedes and replaces all prior
agreements and negotiations between the parties. This License shall not be altered,
amended or otherwise modified except by the express written agreement between the
parties executed by each of the parties to this License.

[SIGNATURES ON FOLLOWING PAGE]

14



WITNESS the execution hereof by Licensor and Licensee as of the day and year
first above written.

LAMAR ADVERTISING OF GREATER CLEVELAND REGIONAL

YOUNGSTOWN, INC. DBA LAMAR TRANSIT AUTHORITY - LICENSOR

ADVERTISING OF CLEVELAND, OH -

LICENSEE

By: By:

Name: India L. Birdsong Terry

Title: General Manager, CEOQ

Date: Date:

Branch Address: 12222 Plaza Drive Address: 1240 West 6" Street
Parma, OH 44130 Cleveland, OH 44113

Tel: (216) 676-8168

Tax 1D No.;

Approved as to legal form:

Janet E. Burney, General Counsel
Deputy General Manager for Legal
Affairs

15



STATE OF OHIO )
) SS:
COUNTY OF CUYAHOGA )

BEFORE ME, a Notary Public, in and for said County and State, came the Greater
Cleveland Regional Transit Authority, a body politic, by India L. Birdsong Terry, its General
Manager, Chief Executive Officer, who acknowledged that she did execute the foregoing
instrument, on behalf of said Authority; that the same is her free act and deed as such officer;
and the free act and deed of the Authority.

IN TESTIMONY WHEREQF, | have hereunto set my hand and official seal at Cleveland,
Ohio this day of , 2023.

NOTARY PUBLIC

STATE OF OHIO )
) SS:
COUNTY OF CUYAHOGA )

BEFORE ME, a Notary Public, in and for said County and State, came Lamar
Advertising of Youngstown, Inc., dba Lamar Advertising of Cleveland, OH, by

, its, , who acknowledged that he/she did execute the foregoing
instrument, on behalf of said corporation or other corporate entity; that the same is his/her free
act and deed, individually and as such officer; and the free act and deed of the corporation or
other corporate entity.

IN TESTIMONY WHEREOQF, | have hereunto set my hand and official seal at Cleveland,
QOhio this day of , 2023,

NOTARY PUBLIC

This instrument prepared by

Dawn M. Tarka

Associate Counsel Il

Greater Cleveland Regional Transit Authority
1240 West 6™ St.

Cleveland, Ohio 44113
















































CHAPTER 1210
Advertising Policy

1210.01 Advertising on Authority Property

1210.01 ADVERTISING ON AUTHORITY PROPERTY.

(a) The Authority seeks to support a healthy and vibrant community through
its brand and advertising. The Authority intends to maintain a safe and welcoming
environment for all Authority passengers and members of the community, including
minors, without regard to race, color, marital status, sexual orientation, religion,
national origin, ancestry, age, sex, gender identity, disability, medical condition, or
military status.

(b) The Authority will maintain a professional advertising environment in all
advertising spaces, including physical, audio and digital spaces, and manage the
advertising program in a manner that will ensure that advertising: (1) does not
discourage the use of or disrupt the operation of the transit system, (2) does not
diminish the Authority’s reputation in the community or the goodwill of its
passengers, (3) does not express an opinion, that might be attributed to the
Authority, regarding political, religious or other issues that are the subject of public
debate, (4) protects passengers, bystanders, employees, vehicles, facilities, and other
equipment from physical harm, (5) aids the Authority in retaining current and
building new transit ridership, and (6) is consistent with its Mission.

(c) The Authority’s advertising space is a non-public forum, which means that
it has not been traditionally open to speech and debate in the same manner as
public parks and city streets have been.

(d) The Authority will permit the following types of advertising: (1)
commercial advertising; (2) advertising related to the Authority’s transit operations;
(3) paid or unpaid public service announcements and (4) paid political advertising.

(e) The Authority will not permit the following types of advertising: (1)
advertising that contains material that discriminates on the basis of race, color,
marital status, sexual orientation, religion, national origin, ancestry, age, sex,
gender identity, disability, medical condition, or military status; (2) alcohol,
marijuana, tobacco products and related products and services; (3) profanity; (4)
violence; (5) unlawful goods, services or conduct; (6) sexual activity, products or
sexually-oriented services; (7) firearms; (8) gambling; (9) unauthorized
endorsements; (10) false, misleading, libelous or deceptive advertising; (11)
copyright infringements, trademark violations or otherwise unlawful advertising;
(12) advertising tending to impede transit safety or disrupt traffic; (13) unclear
identification of the advertiser; and (14) unpaid advertising.



(f) The Authority will determine the interior and exterior spaces that will
serve as appropriate locations for all advertising. The Authority reserves the right
to modify, change, or alter the locations and sizes of the available advertisement
spaces. The placement and size of any advertisement shall be at the sole discretion

of the Authority.

(g) The Authority may, at the sole discretion of the General Manager, Chief
Executive Officer, cause to be removed any advertising that does not conform to this

Policy.

(h) The General Manager, Chief Executive Officer is authorized to issue and
amend procedures to implement this policy without further approval of the Board of
Trustees.















Administrative Procedure No.
Page 5

4.1 ltis the responsibility of all Authority employeses to comply with this administrative
procedure as may be applicable.

5.0 ATTACHMENT

None.



EXHIBIT C

LICENSE FEES
Years 1-5:

Lease Number Annual Rent Monthly Fee
7425 $7,776.00 $648.00
8175 $1,728.00 $144.00
8192 $1,080.00 $90.00
8509 $9,180.00 $765.00
7319 $7,713.00

$92,556.00

Total: $112,320.00
$9,360.00



RESOLUTION NO. 2023-80

AUTHORIZING THE GREATER CLEVELAND REGIONAL TRANSIT
AUTHORITY TO ENTER INTO A FIVE-YEAR LICENSE AGREEMENT WITH
LAMAR ADVERTISING OF YOUNGSTOWN, INC., DBA LAMAR ADVERTISING
OF CLEVELAND, OH FOR QUTDOOR ADVERTISING STRUCTURES AT FIVE
(5) LOCATIONS ON GCRTA PROPERTY

WHEREAS, the Greater Cleveland Regional Transit Authority (“Authority”) owns
property that has been leased or licensed to various advertising companies for the purpose of
installing, maintaining and operating advertising billboards since at least 2010; and

WHEREAS, Lamar Advertising of Youngstown, Inc., dba Lamar Advertising of
Cleveland, OH ("Lamar”) is the current owner of the billboards; and

WHEREAS, the Authority is currently a party to a License Agreement with Lamar for the
licensing of five (5) billboard sites on GCRTA property that expires on October 1, 2023; and

WHEREAS, Lamar has agreed in principal to the terms and conditions of the proposed
new License Agreement ("Agreement”) for a five-year term and a new schedule of fees to be
paid by Lamar to GCRTA, and

WHEREAS, the General Manager, Chisf Executive Officer of the Authority deems the
Agreement with Lamar to be in the best interests of the Authority.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Board of Trustees of the Greater
Cleveland Regional Transit Authority, Cuyahoga County, Ohio:

Section 1. That the General Manager, Chief Executive Officer is hereby authorized to
enter into the Agreement with Lamar Advertising of Youngstown, Inc. dba Lamar Advertising of
Cleveland, OH for the use of five (5) billboard locations during the five-year term, as specified in
the Agreement.

Section 2. That the Authority will be paid an annual license fee of $112,300.00 payable
in monthly installments of $9,360.00 each.

Section 3. That the Authority will use revenues from the Agreement to support its public
transit system.

Section 4. That this resolution shall become effective immediately upon its adoption.

Adopted. September 26, 2023
President

Aftest:

Secretary-Treasurer









%l “EEE
00t WSEET
WEEL WOLE
RLEE BTG
Ykl o0 L
BTG bl L
%8S ¥ TiS8
WED Y Yl09
HRGE'L RELE
JONVIYYA  JDONVHD
1S53 % LA % OLA Z2Z0Z
ETOT SNSYIA €20

09.'28L'96L%
TOE'SSLELLE
LLL 8L 0ELE
LLE'EVE0ELE
B51°961°80LS
BLS'E0R'BES
Ryl
L¥S'SOD'ERS
85" IP5 LTS
TLOW

aLx
£20E

ZL'EEV'EBLS
5B O LLLE
TI0'LO'BILS
69F'SEE'SELS
CEE'BOG'TOLS
6L0'Z0F FaS
996'605'584%
GES'BEE L
ZL0'09E'LES
FIVINILST

aLa
£Z0T

a80° LLO'BRLE
EFL'ESE LOLE
EFE LR SLE
ZEEEOLEELS
SEL'ET0LOLS
AT TR TS
ZEE'POT FOS
LBLEPSOFS
IG5L'FER'OZS
TVNLIV

QLk
2T0T

SEL'TE'DLLE
6ER'SLLFELS
£9Z'CEL'TELS
ZRG'OEF'TLLS
BLe'ZLE LES
Z68'8PE TS
0559451 LGS
E90'E6FOES
PSL0LE'ELS
TVNLIOW

aLa
lZoz

B1eWnss £207 Ueyl aybiy (81L0'ES0%E) %wLLE
[EMIdY 2207 veyl aybly (#19'51S 1$) %6 E
ali

alewsa 70z Jequisidass ueys saybiy (FL9'6EE'2S) %60°LL
leny 220z Jaquizadas ueyr saybiy (555°5) 1 '24) SB0EL

yruow

fewwng

09.'981°961% SRL'BED'ESZS SOE'PEE'PSTS 6L WFE'GETS IVLOL

FEL'ELL'ZES [ 698'55L'2E% SEL'TER'OZS HIBWID3a

ZSTTTELTS | GEB'ZZO'LES £EV'OZE'0TS HIBWINON

LD9'BOB'EES | GES'POS'EES SH'0BY LZS HIASOLOO

B0 L WEN'EL | BBV LEV'EZS | PEE'LEOLZS | EFE'2LL'0ZE S6T'9L6'LES HIBWILIZS

{35570} WFZ L | LSS'8TTTS | 9BL00FEES | LOL'POO'ZES 9U5'ZZS LS Lsnony

(2soalL) %p0°E) | W¥E'EET0ZS | EDO'SFO'ZES | OGL'SPE'ZES ZB5'99.'028 Anr

{2605 +) (9%al 2} | £12'Lp0'E2S | DES'9B0'EES | ¥I¥BLO'ZES FI0'FLE"LES 3Imnr

WEL T %i99 | GEQ'ZEE'GLS | vie'00sELS | 2BS'BLL'BLE SEL'EOZ'LLS AW

WEY L WIE'E | LIO'BOTOZS | PSO'ZLE'BLS | STY'BIF'ELS ZHT'L6L'OLS Tddw

W%EGG WEP'L | PES'SOS'SETS | LEFOSZWES | L¥O'LZE'CES £BS'PI9'0ES HIEYN

%LBD %SLE | 996'L5F'125 | bOP'EL0T0ZS | KEO'BSEELE 80£'ZAS'ALS AdYNHEIS

GCE'L %BLE | EASLFSIES | ZL0'082°1ES | ZGL'PBS'OES ¥ELOLE'BLS AN

ET TN | IONVHD | TWnIov JIVIILES TeNLOY TeNLOW [RERERET]
ATHLNOW €202 % HLNOW £Z0Z £202 zZ0Z LZ0T HLNOW

SNSYIA TWNLOY  ZZ0Z

ATHLNOW Snsy3an
EZ0Z £20E

£202 ¥3aW31d3S HONOXHL S1dIFoaY TvNLov
SAXVL ISN ANV S3TVS
ALMOHLNY LISNYHL TYNOIO3H ANVI3ATTO ¥3LVIHD



YT Lt
%G80
%560
%%SE0
%009
%90°G
EL'S
GEE'S
%00'S
%005
%FLG
%¥0'S
%P0'S
%0
%00t
%EEE
%90
%007
6L
%G8

W80

%E9'S
%S6°0

%99

%S80
%o9'g

WEE'T

%560
Y%68F
%l
Y560
08's
WREEE
%00E
Flina
YlE0
FrTAl
FS6'0

FUEL

%68

aialA  ALiHNLYIN
IDVHIAY OLSAVA 4g3INYIoY
FOVHIAY

[t
osg
ord
802
Sip
L0L
iBL
9BL
08%
0oL
8L

8.9
SS%
LLE

—_—— T =

¥og
665
Fig
EGE
gl

i

ggg'log'zs 02L°558'orLS
05 ZSE'Z0LS !
0% L9E'ZELS L
0 B9G'LES L
CEL'BFLE 000'000'cs 801
ISL'BELS 000'000'cS LEL
6. '7P9TS 000'000'0LS 0L
FSE'FrLE 000'c00'st £00L
000'0ES 0oo'cog're 0EL
2./ 258 000'000'68 0ed
0GE'0ES 00S'86+'LE  ¥BZL
ZTR'GES 02Z6'LI0'ES  ¥BOL
9T0'6rS GOR'EEL'LS 168
£EG'ELES ooo'oDo'ss GEOL
£EE'E09S 000'000'SLS GBOL
281 06% 000'000'SLS GBOL
FES'GFES OLL'/BB'GS  EBOL
Z6)'GrS SZZ'IEBE'FS  DBOL
gel'sos SZL'VPPE'ES 9FS
0% LBLOGL PSS I
__ 6io'zees
0% 030'L1ES [}
0% 695513 3
0% 09E'FLT5S
03 8.9'2% b
0% TE9'LLT'SS L
159'L9L8 D9E'2L9'TPS
0% CET LIL'ELS L
0s BEF' LZS L
08 EFZ 189S L
0s BOL'BLES L
0% 698'G1LE'9% L
60L°6YS i98'49L'8  sEOL
000'8Ls 000'000'ES  SEOL
005'es 000'000'ES SBOL
£59'vEd 000'000'ES SO
GOE"9% 00S'A66'FS  560L
0% 6L¥' Lv I
0% 63Z'czL'68
0% 692'STL'68 L
LS3WILINI IVdIONIEd  SAWD
IYLOL WxIL

Z Jo | abey

HNYE ATH
HNYE AN
dIIMS-HNYE AZH
SNVICDIN T34ILS
S3AILEND3S JOLTIIH
SNYIODIN 1341LS
SNYTI0DIN 134ILS
S3ILIHENIZS dOLTTIH
SINLENDIS JOLTHH
SMYI0JIN 134118
SMYI0DIN 134118
SNYI02IN 134ILS
SNYI0JIN 1341LS
SNYI0JIN 134118
SNYI0DIN 134118
SNYI0JIN 734118
SOYI0JIN 134118
SNYTI0DIN T34I1LS
OIHO 40 3LV1S

OIHC 40 31v1S
dIIME-HMNYE ATH

HNYE ATH
OIHC 40 31V1S

HNYE AT
HANYE NOLOMILNNH
HNYE ONd
HNYE AN
OIHD 40 31¥LS
SNYI03IN 134ILS
SNYI0SIN T734ILS
SNYIODIN 134ILS
© SNYI03IN 1341LS
SNYI02IN 134118
HNYE ATH

HNYE NOLONILNAH
NOLLALILSNI

H33 AZA-NISYE HOLWD

HI3-LNYHD

HIF AFA-HILWN T¥007

g1H4
SWNTHA
HTH4
8244
OWIHS
QWIHS
JWTHA
g7H4
JWIHA
g1H4d
g1H4
g1H4
JiNH4
8044
g1H4

QIHO YWLS-HILWIN 19307

OIHO HvLsS
HI3 ATM

H33 AT
OIHO Yv.1s

Y33 AZH
LNNODOY XL S31WS

LNMO3DY AJOLSAD Oid
ONMd ALINLDY 33A0TdINT

OIHO BYL1S
81H4
gTH4
81H4
g1Hd
8244

LA AZH-LO0W LNYHOHIN

L3HYWIN AINOIN
ANIWNHLSNI

£Z0Z ‘1€ 1SNONY 40 SY

SLNIWLSIANI AMNSYIHL 40 AYOLNIANI
ALMOHLNY LISNYHL TWNOID3Y ANV TIAI IO HILYIHD

£TOZ/LE
CEOTILE
SATAL N
QZ0Z/9E
GE0TIBTIE
SzoeiLe
STOZLLLILL
SEOZILEAL
FEOZ/BLEL
SE0ZIEML
SE0E/LEML
SETOZIkiv
SE0Z/0es
SET0ZreEe
STOCILES
ST0ZfELS
SE0CIDLE
FCOEIBES
EZ0E/ LG

EC0T/ L6
EEZ0E/LI6

EE0e/LiG
EE0ZILIG

EC0E/NI6
EE0LIIG
£20Ee
ET0EIG
EE0ELIB
S2Z0E/LEm
SZOTfETv
GEOTILESN
FE0T/0E/G
FEOTILE
EZ0TIE/L

ECOE/LE
aL¥a

ALIENLYIN 3ISYHIUNC

EC0L/LER
AN TA LR
ECOCriER
AL o
AN AL
EZ0T/ILEE
EE0TILLE
EZ0EILLSL
cz0emLEl
CTOZMBEDL
CTOEMLEDL
CTOEMNEDL
EE0LI0ESS
Zeozioes
CEOEILED
CE0giveEss
ZEC0EirlLiE
Zehgieere
£E0ere

O HILWI TWO0T TYLOL

ANMd HOLWIN 1207

aNNd LNFWIDHOSNT MY TIYLOL

£C0er LB
£E0ErLea

£E0e/1e8
ET0LI1E/3

ETOTILESS
A R
CCOZ/LER
ECOEN R
EZoenee
ZE0TILED
PR A )
CZOTILEN
LE0ZI0EE

LEQEIVE
E20T/0ED

ONNd LNIWIDEOINT AT
AN JONVHASNI TVLOL

ANNd IDNYENSHI

AN TYHINTD TVLOL

annd TYHINZD

ONNL LNFNFHILTSY ONOE TYLOL

EE0e/LER
3iva

ann=s INSW3HILIY aneg

annd



HbT ¥

WLt

%99°G
%S0
Wee's
%0r'S
YOE'S
%009
%008
%lE'S
o0
%EL'S
%SE'S
%EE'S
%ED'S
WEL'S
GBLT
WeI'E
WST'E
%%O6'0
WGLE
oL ¥
Y05t
WEIE
S00'E

Se0E"k

TEED
%dS0
WEFD
0L L
oS8l
%95°E
%860

Y59°5

Y99’

%S6°0

analh  ALIEHMLYIN

Z6E

0501
L5k

LEB
LB

[ty
0L
SBE
8LE
by
65E
LES
SE¥
28E
069

ity
L&

Lig
£6E
BSE
60e
62¢
e

b

LBLEZEY'FY

0B5'068°LS
0%
0%
GLA'9E%
005'25%
005'95%
L99'LELS
1S9'06TS
Z64'69T%
L5L'BELS
96E'ZELS
FOL G
PEE'FFLS
056'9%
0GL'GEs
20E°1ES
£9L'8E1%
BEL'SFE
LSE'0LS
£95'L%
£85'21LTS
GEO'0ES
VEOTLLLS
25+'0%

81Z'6ETY

ZE0'9S
GEF'OLS
BEO'ZES
GEO'TPS
FELLPS
855501
0%

03
03
0%

LS3H31INI

JOVHIAY OLSAVA a3NyE0V

FDYUIAY

659'05L'LBES

£Z0'96Z 9518
tOL 9Pk GFS
LED'SHS
000'000'SS
000'000'6S
000'000'sS
000'000'S%
000'000°0LS
000'000°01S
000'000'68
000'000's8
000'000'5%
000'000'68
/EC'9E6S
000'000'SS
BOS'SEE 7S
000'000'6e
000'000'58
58/ 'vEE'S
000'000'6S
000'000'S$
000'000'5%
000'000'se
PEG'GLE'FE

reLLL9'8LE

000'000'2S
000'000°'ES
000'000°58
SLE'CHR'LS
SLE'GPE LS
861 P56 RS
9ET'Z66S
FOL'TLE' LS
SB0'0LE" LS
gL0'zs

TYdIDNIEd
IYLOL

G601
£ss
SE01
G601
G601
LEL
LEL
(3%
899
€001
LIS
g601
g60 L
LSS
G601
G601
£9t
S50l
G601
5601
918

G601
S60L
SE01
FSF
ELB
ELS

b

SAVa
WH3L

Z jo g sbed

OIHO 20 31¥1S
HNYE AZH
SNY10DIN 134ILS
SAYI0JIN 1341LS
S3ILEND3S dOLTIH
SOYI0JIN 1341LS

SOYI00IN 134ILS
S3ILEND3S JOLTIH

S31LENI3S dOLTUH
SAYI0DIN 1341LS
S3LLYND3S dOLTIH
SNYI0JIN 134118
SNYI0DIN 134ILS
SMYI0JIN T134ILS
SAY 103N T134ILS
S3ILEND3S JOLTTIH
SMYI02IN 1341LS
SN 103N 134ILS
S3ILYNI3S dOLTTIH
SOVICDIN 1341LS
SNYI0JIN 1341LS
SNYI03IN 1341LS
S3ILIENI3S dOLTTIH

SMY100IN 134118
SNYI0JIN 134118
SOWT0DIN 134ILS
SNYI02IN 134118
SNYI0DIN 134118
S3ILIMNI3S JOLTIH
HNYE ATH

OIHO 40 31%1S
HNYE AM

NOLLALILSNI

OIHD Yv1S
H23 AN
8244
JWIHL
JWIHA
g1Hd
g1Hd
JWIHAL
IMHS
g1H4
g1H4
8244
gTH4
JWIH4
49 Wol AHNSYIHL SN
49 wogy gH4
49 woy giH4
49 woy 344
g1H4
gIH4
g1H4
g1H4
JLON AHNSY3HL SN

8244
g4
g1H4
g7H4
g1Hd
JLON AHNSYIHL SN
HO3 A3

OIHO Yvls
H33 A3

INIWAHLSNI

€Z0Z ‘L€ LSNONYV 40 SY

SLNIINLSIANI AYNSYIHL 40 AHOLNIANI

EE0E/LE  EEO0Z/LEM
EC0E/LE6  ET0E/LER
SE0EMLLIL  BEOZILLIL
FEOEILEEL  ER0EEL/D
SIS EE0E/aL
SE0CILEE  EEDCILEE
SE0Z/8E ELE0Z/NE
SEDZ/BEE  ETOZIBERE
SEDZ/BEE  ETOZ/BEIE
SE0ZILEIE  EEOE/ER
FEOZIOEIEL  EEDEMPER
SE0ZILLILL  EEOZILLRE
¥FEDZ/BEIS  EZO0E/SLE
QE0TILENL  EEOEILES)
PEDSISEALL  LEDEISLILL
FE0Z/BEE  EE0Z/eTia
SEOE/EL/S  TEZOEVEZ/S
PEOZIBEL  LEOTIBIEL
PEDZ/BEE  TEOZ/0E/D
SE0Zi0Eis  ZE0EI0Els
SE0ZI0ES  ZEOTIDEM
SE0LiPLiF  ZEOCIFLIP
EZ0Z/0EL L ZE0T/EEIE
PEOTISIF LE0g/Sir
FEOZIOES  LEOC/0E/S
FEOZ/9LM  LE0E/9E/8
VEOZ/BEE  Ee0e/egie
FEOZ/GE6  EE0ZISE/E
FEOZIOEY  EE0ZITIS
EE0T/LG  ETOT/LEMG
AN AN EC0E/L e
EE0E/ LG EE0E/LEMR
3lva J1va

ALRENLYIN ISYHOUNd

ALIMOHLNY LISNVYL TYNOIDIH ONYIIAT IO ¥ILYIHD

SANNL TV TVLOoL
GNNd INSTSTY THLOL

aNNd 3nY3s3ay
anNnd TVLIGYD vid TWLIOL

anNNd TYLIdYD Y1
anrd NOISNId TVLOL

ANNd NOISN3d
amnd



GREATER CLEVELAND REGIONAL TRANSIT AUTHORITY

DEET SERVICE SCHEDULE AND STATUS

AS OF AUGUST 31, 2023
Final Total Principal Interest Principal Debt Service Interest Principal Debt Service Total Debt
Maturity  Outstanding Payable/ Payablef Requirement/ Payable/ Payable/ Requirement! | Requirement
Bonds Date 12172022 6172023 6112023 6/1/2023 1211/2023 121112023 121112023 2023

Series 2014A-Sales Tax Rev. Dec. 2025  5,040,000.00 109,100.00 0.00 108,100.00 109,100.00 1,610,000.00 1.719,100.00 1,828,200.00
Series 2015-Sales Tax Rev. Dec. 2026 15,235,000.00 398,375.00 0.00 398,375.00 398,375.00 3,700,000.00 4,098,375.00 | 4,495,750.00
Series 2016-Sales Tax Rev. Dec. 2027  6,910,000.00 172,750.00 0.00 172,750.00 172,750.00 1,250,000.00 1,422 750.00 1,585,500.00
Series 2019-Sales Tax Rev. Dec. 2030 10,030,000.00 250,750.00 0.00 250,750.00 250,750.00 1,050,000.00 1,300,750.00 1.551,500.00
Total Bonds $37.915,000.00 $930,875.00 $0.00 $930,975.00 $930,975.00 $7,610,000.00 | $8,540,975.00 | $9,471,950.00

Bond Refirement

Current Balance (Set Aside for 2023) $9,725,289

Monthly Set Aside Required 50




MONTH
JANUARY
FEBRUARY
MARCH
APRIL
MAY
JUNE
JULY
AUGUST
SEPTEMEER
OCTOBER
NOWVEMBER
DECEMBER

YEAR TO DATE

GREATER CLEVELAND REGIONAL TRANSIT AUTHORITY

SUMMARY OF INVESTMENT PERFORMANCE
YEAR TO DATE THROUGH AUGUST 31, 2023

2023

AVERAGE INTEREST AVERAGE
BALANCE EARNED ¥IELD
$373,600,888 $1,088,754 3. 73%
$375,262,233 $1,025,329 3.96%
$378.391,518 51,443 221 4.11%
$380,290,265 51,438,394 4.19%
$383,959,391 51,472,843 4.30%
5382 381,272 31,166,634 4.30%
$382.652 131 51,286,004 4. 38%
$382,269,606 52,518,463 4.29%
379,580,169 $11,449 442 4.16%

RTA AVERAGE YIELDS OVER (UNDER) INDEX

# Moving average coupon equivalent yields for 6 month Treasury Bills,

# Market Yield equals US Treasury Money Fund 7 Day Yield

STANDARD MONEYMKT

YIELD #
4.26%
4.56%
471%
4.82%
4.93%
5.06%
5.19%
5.20%

4.84%

-0.69%

YIELD #
4.19%
4.43%
4.69%
4.89%
4.93%
4.97%
5.14%
5.28%

4.82%

-0.66%

AVERAGE
BALANCE
$286,544 522
$300,470,756
$286,315,850
$298,367,804
$346,505,648
$359,979,169
5359,458,838
$350,687,979
$363,347,871
$355,748,804
$369,046,114
5376,464,232

$365,833,723

INTEREST
EARNED
$37,367
$41,380
§54,394

109,508

$283,066

$356,367
$548,323
$755,153

5508,240

$1,302,783

$861,617
£1,146,7186

$6,014,804

2022

AVERAGE STANDARD MARKET

YIELD YIELD # YIELD #
0.18% 0.16% 0.01%
0.25% 0.25% 0.01%
0.43% 0.42% 0.10%
0.58% 0.63% 0.10%
1.05% 0.88% 0.50%
1.64% 1.26% 1.17%
2.08% 1.64% 1.76%
2.20% 2.08% 2.09%
2.89% 2.56% 2.78%
2.87% 3.08% 2.97%
3.24% 3.57% 3.26%
3.60% 3.93% 4.17%
1.74% 1.71% 1.58%
0.03% 0.16%



GREATER CLEVELAND REGIONAL TRANSIT AUTHORITY
REPORT ON INVESTMENT EARNINGS (CASH BASIS)

AUGUST 2023
BOND RETIREMENT FUND
HUNTINGTON MONEY MARKET $34,657.37
AUGUST 2023 $34,657.37
2023 YEAR TO DATE $188,025.21
2022 YEAR TO DATE $19,097.18
GENERAL FUND
HUNTINGTON-SALES TAX ACCOUNT $110.60
STAROHIO $49,740.42
KEY BANK SWEEP ACCOUNT $17,46567
PNC CUSTODY ACCOUNT $5,914.15
MERCHANT ACCOUNT-KEY BANK SWEEP ACCOUNT $164.07
AUGUST 2023 $73,394 91
2023 YEAR TO DATE $953,525.00
2022 YEAR TO DATE $334,707.78
INSURANCE FUND
STAROHIO $19,626.99
AUGUST 2023 $19,626.99
2023 YEAR TO DATE $168,644.49
2022 YEAR TO DATE $39,742.50
LAW ENFORCEMENT FUND
KEY BANK SWEEP ACCOUNT $14.72
STAROHIO $1,468 13
AUGUST 2023 $1,482.85
2023 YEAR TO DATE $6,696.68
2022 YEAR TO DATE $260.68

Page 10of 3



LOCAL MATCH FUND
STAROHIO-LOCAL MATCH
FHLB

FHLMC

KEY BANK SWEEP ACCOUNT

PENSION FUND
STARCHIO
“KEY BANK SWEEP ACCOUNT

EMPLOYEE ACTIVITY ACCOUNT
KEY BANK MONEY MARKET

RTA CAPITAL FUND

FMNMA,

FHLB

KEY BANK SWEEP ACCOUNT

GREATER CLEVELAND REGIONAL TRANSIT AUTHORITY
REPORT ON INVESTMENT EARNINGS {CASH BASIS)

AUGUST 2023

AUGUST 2023
2023 YEAR TO DATE
2022 YEAR TO DATE

AUGUST 2023
2023 YEAR TO DATE
2022 YEAR TO DATE

AUGUST 2023

2023 YEAR TO DATE
2022 YEAR TO DATE

AUGUST 2023
2023 YEAR TO DATE
2022 YEAR TO DATE

Page 2 of 3

$231,026.74
$300,000.00
$126,250.00
$4.401.35
$661,678.09
$3,432,068.63
$588,265.16

$6,344.32
52.74
$6,347.06
$44.544.01
$7.068.94

$267.97
$267.97
$441.15

$5.63

$800.00
$10,750.00
3741.81
$12,291.81
$123,665.76
$37,986.29



RESERVE FUND

STARCHIO

FHLB
FHLE
FHLB
FHLB
FHLMC
FHLMC
FHLB
FHLMC

KEY BANK SWEEP ACCOUNT

TOTAL ALL FUNDS

GREATER CLEVELAND REGIONAL TRANSIT AUTHORITY
REPORT ON INVESTMENT EARNINGS (CASH BASIS)
AUGUST 2023

AUGUST 2023
2023 YEAR TO DATE
2022 YEAR TO DATE

AUGUST 2023
2023 YEAR TO DATE
2022 YEAR TO DATE

AUGUST
INTEREST RECEIVED (CASH BASIS) 52,255,610
ACCRUED INTEREST:
BEGINNING: ($4,229,934)
ENDING: 54,492,787
INTEREST INCOME EARNED: 52,518,463
AVERAGE INVESTMENT BALANCE (COSTY): $382,269 606
AVERAGE YIELD ON INVESTMENTS: 4.29%

Page 3 of 3

$164,546.36
$131,250.00
$83,750.00
$90,625.00
$85,000.00
$106,733.75
$262,500.00
$384,375.00
$126,250.00
5832.98
$1,445,863.09
$3,615,338.95
$452,378.62

$2,255,610.14
$8,532,949.97
$1,479,512.78

2023 YEAR
TO DATE
$8,532,950

{$1,576,293)
$4,402 787
$11,449 444

$379,580,169
4.16%



Instrument

Money Market Account

Key Bank Sweep Account
Star Ohio

Earnings Credit Rate Account
U.5. Government Securities
Total Investment Portfolio

COMPOSITION OF INVESTMENT PORTFOLIO

AS AUGUST 31, 2023

PRINCIPAL
$10,683,5848
$15,569
$113,471,637
314,475,390
3242 504,215
$381,150,659

FACE
AMOUNT
$10,771,349
315,569
$113,471,637
514,475,390
$242,755,000
$381,488,944

PERCENT OF
TOTAL
2.80%
0.00%
29.77%
3.80%
63.62%
100.00%

AVERAGE
YIELD
4.81%
0.95%
5.66%
0.95%
3.84%
4.29%

AVERAGE
MATURITY
1
4
1
1
604
392



"UDHBLLIOJU [EUORIPPE Joy
08-0Z0Z "ON 1ERA|0S3Y SA3ISNIL 4O PIROG PUE Y70 AINPA00LD BMENSIIALPY (A3|jod [2ne) |} Asouyiny Jisues) [BuoiSay Puejana)] Ja1eaun 3y} Jo suone|nBay PUe S3jny PayIpoT U1 o g5g Jaydel o1 13481 asealy

TTOZ LT Yoy pauep ASUuiy 1uasg Y 03 uoiidQ AJOSinpy 4JeISUOISSIWILIOT SIE YD
BO-TTOZ J2quiny word( uoissiuiag sag3 ciyo
0207 ‘9 Aew pajep (sieyy 12831 - WG] Peopusa Bun 1Aays 0 uopndQ AIOSIADY JB1S LOISSIWILLOD ST D140
T-¥ZZ0-INI-ECOT S2quunpy uojid Q) [ELLLCHL| UOISSIWWIOD 51433 o0
{3) pue {0)E0"TOT SUONIAS 2P0 PISMEY TIYD
e SOURHCLUOY Uf 3G 01 S|ENPIMPUI geaydde Joy papinoud Suiaq 51 UoIIBLLLIo SIYL

A10M
adpaH |ang jueg sLueH Owa
Jensidoy puoq UO{[3I HI0) MmN JO Jueg
SIUFUNSINUI-CILO YW LS
JEunsspUn
WINOXY ¥B| SHES pUe Juswaniay puog Jueg uelSuzLng
IUNCITY MOJIST PUYL WS
P JIpRUD PUR JUNDI0Y [BIPGISND 4ued JINd
s3AMUAS BuRjueq e yueg Ay

diysuoijejad jo aanjep uonnigsuy jenuewly MHueg

a £Z0T "TEIsnENy jo sy
sdiysuopejay [epueuly pue Supjueg
Aysoyany usuel) jeuoiday pueEAz) Ja1BaIg



	Meeting Notice
	Committee of the Whole agenda
	Board Meeting Agenda
	Minutes
	2023-72
	2023-73
	2023-74
	2023-75 DBE memo
	2023-75
	2023-76 DBE memo
	2023-76
	2023-77
	2023-78
	2023-79
	2023-80 memo package
	2023-80
	Secretary-Treasurer report



